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Chairman’s Statement
FEREE

| have pleasure in presenting the financial results of the Group for
the year ended 31 March 2013.

Following the cessation of the sand mining business last year, the
principal activities of the Group are trading of securities, industrial
water supply business, property development and trading and other

strategic investments.

Current Development Projects

During the year, the Group completed the disposal of the 49%
equity interests in China Good Investments Limited (“China
Good") pursuant to the framework agreement entered into in
June 2011 to an independent third party. China Good owns the
entire beneficial interest in Guangzhou Jixiang Properties Limited
which holds a parcel of land with an area of approximately 8,000
square meters. located at the junction of Zhongshanwu Road (#F
Il 1§ ) and Jixiang Road (& # ) in Guangzhou, the PRC for the
development into a commercial and residential complex with GFA
of approximately 120,000 square meters. The construction of the
complex is in good progress during the year. The Group is optimistic
that the pre-sale approval of this Jixiang complex is to be granted
by the relevant government authorities during the last quarter of
2013. This shall help to enhance the bottom-line of the Group in the

coming fiscal years.
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Looking Ahead

Notwithstanding the central government has implemented a
number of austerity measures to direct the development of the PRC
property market, the market continues to boom driven by the strong
consumer demand. The Group has focused its resources in the PRC
property market in recent years and shall remain focus on driving
long-term sustainable growth in the PRC. In the coming year, the
Group shall in full force move forward to complete the acquisition
of the 50% investment in another development project located
adjacent to the abovementioned Jixiang Road project. Further,
we will continue to build up our land bank in the PRC whenever
opportunities arise. The Group is confident on the contributions and
cashflows expected to be derived from its development projects and
its water supply business. The Group will monitor closely its business
strategy and make necessary refinements to cope with the emerging
business markets in the mainland.

A Word of Gratitude

I would like to offer my sincere thanks to my fellow board members,
the management and employees for their extremely hard work,
enthusiasm, resourcefulness, and contribution to the Group in the

past year.

Dr. Yap Allan

Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 June 2013
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR D

Results and Financial Review

Results

For the year ended 31 March 2013,
consolidated loss before non-controlling interests was HK$132.2

the Group’s audited

million (2012: HK$188.1 million), which comprised mainly revenue
from sales of properties held for sale of HK$160.0 million (2012:
HK$55.4 million), revenue from water supply business of HK$20.6
million (2012: HK$22.8 million), cost of sales of HK$170.1 million
(2012: HK$64.4 million), other income of HK$3.9 million (2012:
HK$13.9 million), other gains and losses, other expenses of HK$34.5
million (2012: HK$52.4 million), administrative expenses of HK$73.1
million (2012: HK$79.4 million), finance costs of HK$8.8 million
(2012: HK$22.4 million), loss on fair value changes on investments
held for trading of HK$32.4 million (2012: HK$2.0 million), share
of profit of associates of HK$3.7 million (2012: share of loss of
HK$112.8 million arising from the one-off loss on disposal by an
associate of its non-controlling interests in a tyre manufacturing
plant in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC")), income tax
expense of HK$1.4 million (2012: tax credit of HK$23.2 million).
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Included in other gains and losses, other expenses, were impairment
loss on available-for-sale investments of HK$18.0 million (2012:
HK$15.9 million), impairment losses on property, plant and
equipment, goodwill, intangible assets and prepaid lease payments
of HK$4.1 million, HK$0.7 million, HK$2.1 million and HK$0.5
million respectively (2012: HK$nil, HK$6.2 million, HK$nil and
HK$nil respectively). Included in the year ended 31 March 2012
were an impairment loss on properties held for sale of HK$15.4
million, a gain on disposal of convertible note of HK$13.5 million
and penalty on deferred payment of land premiums of HK$28.2
million. These items did not recur during the year ended 31 March
2013.

The audited loss for the year attributable to the equity holders was
HK$126.7 million (2012: HK$190.0 million) and the basic loss per
share from continuing and discontinued operations was HK$0.11
(2012: HK$0.17).

Segment Results

Continuing Operations

Property development and trading

The construction work of the Group’s commercial property
development project in the city centre of Guangzhou, which is to be
developed into a commercial complex with serviced apartments and
a modern shopping mall, commenced during the reporting year and
is in good progress.

Segment turnover amounted to HK$160.0 million for the year ended
31 March 2013 (2012: HK$55.4 million). Segment result recorded a
loss of HK$20.0 million, decreased by HK$44.0 million (68.8%) from
HK$64.0 million for the year ended 31 March 2012.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR D

Trading of Securities

There was no trading activity during the year ended 31 March 2013
while segment turnover amounted to HK$10.8 million for the year
ended 31 March 2012. The segment recorded a loss of HK$32.2
million (2012: HK$1.6 million).

Water Supply

During the year under review, the Group maintained a revenue
inflow in the water supply segment. The Group will continuously
put effort in scaling up the water supply through negotiating with
existing customers and implement effective costs control measures

in this business in order to boost the profit margin.

For water supply segment, the revenue was HK$20.6 million for the
year ended 31 March 2013, decreased by HK$2.2 million (9.6%)
from 2012 and segment result recorded a profit of HK$3.9 million
decreased by HK$1.0 million from HK$4.9 million for the year ended
31 March 2012.

Discontinued Operation

The Group disposed of its subsidiaries holding sand mining vessels
during the last reporting year. Accordingly, the sand mining business
was classified as discontinued operation while no such item
appeared in current reporting year. Operating profits for this sand
mining business during prior year was HK$2.6 million.
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Liquidity

Bank balances and cash as at 31 March 2013 were HK$496.7 million
(31 March 2012: HK$818.4 million). The gearing ratio (borrowings/
shareholders’ funds) at 31 March 2013 increased to 34.3% (31
March 2012: 8.0%).

As at 31 March 2013, bank and other borrowings of the Group
were approximately HK$866.7 million (31 March 2012: HK$215.9
million). Bank and other borrowings of the Group as at both 31
March 2012 and 2013 bore floating interest rates.

Pledge of assets

As at 31 March 2013, certain assets of the Group amounting to
HK$226.3 million (31 March 2012: HK$226.9 million) were pledged
to banks and financial institutions for loan facilities granted to the
Group.

Exchange rate and interest rate risks exposure

The majority of the Group’s business transactions, assets and
liabilities are denominated in Hong Kong Dollars and Renminbi. The
Group will consider entering into hedging contracts to eliminate
any exposures to downside risks, whenever the Group and the
concerned foreign subsidiaries think fit. At the reporting date, the
Group did not enter into any interest rate speculative and hedging

contracts.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR D

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 March 2013, a corporate guarantee to the extent of
HK$75.0 million (31 March 2012: HK$75.0 million) was given by
the Group to a bank in respect of banking facilities granted to an
associate. The banking facilities of approximately HK$42.2 million
was utilized by the associate (31 March 2012: HK$38.5 million) as at
31 March 2013. The Group did not have other significant contingent
liabilities as at 31 March 2013.

Material acquisitions and disposals

On 29 September 2010, an agreement was entered into between
Vigorous World Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, ITC Properties Holdings Group Limited, ITC Properties
Group Limited and the Company in relation to the acquisition of
50% interest in ITC Properties (China) Limited at a consideration
of HK$480 million. The principal assets of ITC Properties (China)
Limited and its subsidiaries are a parcel of land located in Yuexiu
District in Guangzhou, the People’'s Republic of China. Such land is
adjacent to the property development project held by the Group.
The acquisition has not yet completed as of the date of this report.

On 25 May 2012, the Group entered into a conditional sale and
purchase agreement with an independent third party regarding
the acquisition of certain subsidiaries which are engaged in hotel
operations and the holding of vacant land for development purpose
in the PRC. A deposit of HK$250 million in total was paid. The
acquisition has been lapsed and the deposit has been refunded after

the date of the consolidated statement of financial position.
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Employees and remuneration policies

At 31 March 2013, there were approximately 87 employees (31
March 2012: 93) employed by the Group. The remuneration policies
are formulated on the basis of performance of individual employees
and the prevailing salaries’ trends in the various regions. They are
subject to be reviewed every year. The Group also provides employee
training programs, a mandatory provident fund scheme, medical

insurance and discretionary bonuses.

Outlook

The Board believes, despite the ongoing implementation of the
government'’s austerity measures in the real estate sector in 2013,
following the 18th National Congress of China, that economic
restructuring, a new round of urbanization and an “income
doubling” plan have been the common consensus of the general
public in China, which will become the momentum to push forward
the development and longer-term prospect of the real estate market
in the PRC.

The Group has focused its resources on the real estate sector in
the PRC since last year. The construction work of the Group's site
located at the junction at Jixiang Road and Zhongshan Wu Road in
the centre of Guangzhou was in good progress during the year. The
Group expects to obtain the pre-sell approval in the last quarter of
2013.

The Group will continue and cautiously to identify lucrative land
investment opportunities to build up its land reserve in the PRC,

aiming at maximizing the shareholders’ wealth.
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Directors Profile
EEERE

Executive Directors

Dr. YAP Allan, aged 57, joined the Company in 1995. In September
2008, Dr. Yap was elected as the Chairman of the Company. Dr.
Yap holds an Honorary degree of Doctor of Laws and has over 30
years' experience in finance, investment and banking. Dr. Yap is
an Alternate Director of Television Broadcasts Limited, a company
whose shares are listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Dr. Yap is the chairman
and chief executive officer of China Enterprises Limited, a company
whose shares are traded on the OTC Securities Market in the United
States of America, as well as Burcon NutraScience Corporation, a
company whose shares are listed on the Toronto Stock Exchange
in Canada, the Frankfurt Stock Exchange in Germany and NASDAQ
Stock Exchange in the United States of America. Dr. Yap is the
executive chairman of Hanwell Holdings Limited and Tat Seng
Packaging Group Ltd., both of which are companies whose shares
are listed on the Singapore Exchange Limited.

On 5 December 2012, Dr. Yap resigned as the executive chairman of
Intraco Limited, a company whose shares are listed on the Singapore
Exchange Limited.

Mr. HEUNG Pik Lun, Edmond, aged 51, joined the Group in
December 2010 as a director of Hanny Development (China)
Company Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company and was subsequently appointed as an Executive Director
in February 2011. Mr. Heung is responsible for strategic planning
and developing property development business of the Group.

Mr. Heung has started developing real estate projects in China since
1992 and has maintained a strong business network. Possessing
in-depth knowledge in the South China market, Mr. Heung has
participated over a hundred real estate development projects. Prior
to China property development market, Mr. Heung also has decades
of property development experience in Canada and South East Asia.

Mr. Heung is a holder of a bachelor’'s degree of Arts from Windsor
University, Canada. He is currently an independent non-executive
director of See Corporation Limited, a company whose shares are
listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange. In June 2013,
Mr. Heung was elected a professional member of RICS (The
Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors) as a Chartered Project
Management Surveyor and he is also a member of ISCM (Institute of
Shopping Centre Management) since 2011.

)

BTES

ERBEL ST R —NAARAFMAERR
Alo-BEITR_ZEZENFNABHEELELR
AlFEE BT/ EAELBH LB YR
SR RERRTER TEES = T8 -
EHTAERERBERARCETEES %
NEZBRDRNEABERSFAERAR (5
RET]) EMR ET e EiE 1A China Enterprises
Limited (RO R EEBIEMISEE) R
Burcon NutraScience Corporation ( H % {7
RMEXRZGEZELFR SN BEEHERE
FBH R ST R EBINASDAQ Stock Exchange
EW) 2 EFERITEER - FE1H L BHanwell
Holdings Limited & Tat Seng Packaging Group
Ltd. ZAITESE - 525 R B 2 IR i
BHRXGAER AR LT

RZEBE——F+-_AFEH EBLEET
Intraco Limited Z¥ITERF  Z A8 2 RMDR
TP EHFRRZGMBERRAA LT

MEMRELE S1R R _T-—TF+_AmM
AREE ERARFR—HAEE2ENBRA -
BEER (PE)BRARZES IR _F
——E_ABZERBITESR AELKHE
FHEZEREH RS RER-

AEEB - NAN_FHRHEZSIERNEHER
B HABERARKES SEATSERE
EEMRRY) TR Z2EBENEBI00EL
WHERRIEER RN EEABRNBHETS
A AEETRRINE AR R E RO FBE
LREXBEZFER-

AEERMERRIAERFBEXELEM
BN REBREEBRAR (ERMHNER
FRERLE™) ZBYIFRTES - N _FT—=
FRNA AEEZREEZF RS
SEXKNBERKRFTIER ERAEAM
AR_F-—FERBALEALEEEEEE
B

Hanny Holdings Limited « $3 & EHR AT



Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. KWOK Ka Lap, Alva, aged 65, has been an Independent Non-
Executive Director since July 2003. He was a marketing manager
in an international company engaging in the design of business
administration system. Mr. Kwok has been in the insurance and
investments business for over 30 years, principally in the senior
managerial position leading a sizable sales team. Mr. Kwok is an
independent non-executive director of ITC Properties Group Limited
and Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited, both of which are companies

whose shares are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. POON Kwok Hing, Albert, aged 52, has been an Independent
Non-Executive Director since February 2007. Mr. Poon graduated
from the University of Bath, United Kingdom with a Master of
Science degree in Business Administration. He is also a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a
member of the CPA Australia. Mr. Poon is currently an independent
non-executive director of Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited, a
company whose shares are listed on the main board of the Stock

Exchange.

Mr. SIN Chi Fai, aged 53, has been an Independent Non-Executive
Director since January 2008. Mr. Sin is a director and a shareholder
of a Singapore company engaged in the distribution of data
storage media and computer related products in Asian countries.
He obtained a diploma in Banking from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
(now known as The Hong Kong Polytechnic University). He has over
16 years of experience in banking field and 16 years’ sales and
marketing experience in information technology industries. He is
currently an independent non-executive director of Rosedale Hotel
Holdings Limited, a company whose shares are listed on the main
board of the Stock Exchange and an independent non-executive
director of China Enterprises Limited, a company whose shares
are traded on the OTC Securities Market in the United States of

America.
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TERERRSE

Hanny Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is committed to ensuring
and maintaining good standards of corporate governance,
geared to achieving corporate goals and enhancing the interests
of shareholders. In March 2012, the board of Directors (the
“Board”) adopted the new requirements of the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) as updated in Appendix
14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). The CG
Code, along with the Bye-Laws of the Company and the terms
of references of the Board Committees, provide the corporate
governance framework of the Company. This report discloses how
the Company has applied the principles of the CG Code for the year
ended 31 March 2013.

Compliance with the CG Code

The Company has complied with the code provisions of the CG
Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2013, except with
deviations from code provisions A.2.1 and A.4.1.

Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of the chairman and
the chief executive should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. The role of the chief executive is currently
performed by the chairman of the Company, Dr. Yap Allan. The
Board has evaluated such arrangement and considers that it will not
impair the effectiveness of the Board as well as the management of

the operations of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”).
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Code provision A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.
The independent non-executive directors of the Company are not
appointed for a specific term but are subject to retirement by
rotation at the Company’s annual general meetings in accordance
with the Bye-Laws of the Company. As at each annual general
meeting, one-third of the directors of the Company (or such number
as nearest to but not less than one-third) must retire by rotation,
each of the directors of the Company is effectively appointed for a

term of approximately three years or less.
The Board

The Board currently comprises of five members, including two
executive directors, Dr. Yap Allan (Chairman) and Mr. Heung Pik
Lun, Edmond and three independent non-executive directors, Mr.
Kwok Ka Lap, Alva, Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert and Mr. Sin Chi Fai.
Biographical details of the Directors and the relevant relationships
among them, if any, are set out in the “Directors Profile” on pages

10 to 11 of the annual report.

The Board includes a balanced composition of executive directors
and independent non-executive directors and possesses a wide
spectrum of relevant skills and experience. One of the independent
non-executive directors has the professional accounting
qualifications as required under the Listing Rules. The Company has
received confirmation from each non-executive director about his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board

considers all of the non-executive directors to be independent.
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The Board ordinarily holds four meetings per year, and on other
occasions as and when required. Members of the Board are
advised to inform the Company Secretary if they wish to include
matters in the agenda before the relevant regular Board meeting.
All Board members are kept informed of material changes about
the businesses of the Group and have full access to the Company
Secretary with a view to ensuring the Board procedures are
followed.

Ten Board meetings were held during the year ended 31 March
2013. Individual attendances of each Board member at these
meetings is shown below. All the Directors attended the 2012

annual general meeting of the Company.
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Board 2012 Annual

Meetings General

attended/held Meeting

EHE B8fTZ —E-—F

Directors B EEEERNRE BRERBFAE

Executive Directors HITEFE

Dr. Yap Allan BERBELT 10/10 1/1

Mr. Heung Pik Lun, Edmond Bt 10/10 1/1
Independent Non-Executive Directors BUIHHITEE

Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva R AE 10/10 1/1

Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert 3 B B 5T A& 10/10 1/1

Mr. Sin Chi Fai HEERE 10/10 11

All the Directors participated in the continuous professional
development programme of the Company which aims at
enabling the Directors to develop and refresh their knowledge
and to perform their duties. They are also encouraged to attend
suitable trainings at the expense of the Company. The continuous
professional development programme arranged by the Company
during 2012/2013 focused on topics about regulatory, financial and
business affairs. Each of the Directors has provided the Company a

record of training he received during the year.
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Reading Attending
materials/ seminars/
receiving conferences/
briefings and courses/

updates other trainings

MEER HEmNE

BERETR g8 R7eS

Directors B= BHFER H sz
Dr. Yap Allan Qs v/

Mr. Heung Pik Lun, Edmond mEfmEE v v
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva SETAE v

Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert o B B 5T A v/ v/
Mr. Sin Chi Fai AR A v/

The Board represents shareholders of the Company in managing
the Company's affairs with the objective of enhancing shareholders
value, and represents the highest level of authority in the
governance structure of the Company. Its principal functions are to
formulate corporate strategies and directions particularly in relation
to operating plans, corporate governance, business development,
to monitor and control the operating and financial performance
of the Group. The Board has established four committees with
specific responsibilities to manage and oversee particular aspects of
the Company’s affairs. Each committee is appointed with written
terms of reference and is accountable to the full Board. Day-to-day
management of the Group’s business is delegated to the Executive
Committee. The delegation of responsibilities and authority
is reviewed regularly to ensure that the appropriate reporting
systems are in place. The Board has reserved for its decision
and consideration matters covering corporate strategy, dividend
policy, major acquisitions, disposals and capital transactions,
annual and interim results, changes of members of the Board and
its committees, and other significant operational and financial
matters. A written procedure has been agreed for Directors to seek
independent professional advice at the Company's expense upon

their request.
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The Board determines the policy for the corporate governance of
the Company, and reviews annually its effectiveness taking into
account the development of the Group's business and the external
environment.

The roles of the Chairman and the chief executive are currently
performed by Dr. Yap Allan. A division of responsibilities at the
Board level has been maintained to entail a balance of power
and authority. The Board will continue to review the management
structure, taking into consideration the nature and extent of the
Group's operation, and the Nomination Committee will identify
individuals suitably qualified to fill the role of the chief executive,
with a view to distinguish and divide the responsibilities of running
the Board and running of the business.

The Company has arranged for Directors’ and Officers’ Liability
Insurance to indemnify its Directors and management staff against
potential liabilities incurred by them in discharging their duties.
The insurance coverage for the Directors and management staff is
reviewed on an annual basis.

Board Committees

The Board has established committees to assist in carrying out its
responsibilities. Four committees have been appointed, including
the Executive Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Audit Committee. The committees
oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs and report
regularly to the Board.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee comprises all executive directors, currently
Dr. Yap Allan and Mr. Heung Pik Lun, Edmond. The Executive
Committee meets as and when required to oversee the day-to-day
management and operation of the Group’s business.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises of two independent non-
executive directors and one executive director. The current members
of the Remuneration Committee are Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva (who
acts as chairman of the committee), Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert
and Dr. Yap Allan.
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The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure for all directors’ and senior management’s remuneration,
on the remuneration packages of individual executive directors and
senior management, and on the remuneration of non-executive
directors. The remuneration package of Directors is based on their
individual performance, salaries paid by comparable companies,
time commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group. The Remuneration Committee will ensure
that no director or any of his associates is involved in deciding
his own remuneration and have access to professional advice if
considered necessary.

The Remuneration Committee met once during the year ended 31
March 2013 to review the structure and levels of remuneration
paid to non-executive directors and to discuss remuneration related
matters. Individual attendance of each Remuneration Committee
member at the meeting is shown below:

FHZE SR EMARRARERESTN
SAREIE A B H M 2 BUR MR - @58
TEFRRREEABZFHMABIANIE
HWTEZEZFMMEESRLERBER -
ERE2HFMEBIBURNEARE AL
RRARfXMzHe NHzHERBEE
ARAEEEMEBPIZEAER - H I E
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Remuneration Committee
Meeting attended/held

EHE T8I
Remuneration Committee Member FHEZEEERE FHZEEERAREY
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva P EAE 1/1
Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert % B 5 S A 1/1
Dr. Yap Allan BEREE+ 1/1

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are posted
on both the Company’s and the Stock Exchange’s websites.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises two independent non-
executive directors and one executive director. The members of the
Nomination Committee are Dr. Yap Allan (who acts as chairman of
the committee), Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva and Mr. Poon Kwok Hing,
Albert.

The Nomination Committee reviews the structure, size and
composition of the Board and identify individuals suitably qualify to
become Board members as well as nominates and recommends to
the Board candidates for filling vacancies on the Board.
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The Nomination Committee met once during the year ended 31

March 2013 to consider the independence of the non-executive

Directors who will be eligible to stand for re-election at the annual

general meeting of the Company and to review the contributions

and time required from the Directors. Individual attendance of each

Nomination Committee member at the meeting is shown below:
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Nomination Committee
Meeting attended/held

SHE STETZ
Nomination Committee Member REEEE|KE REZEEERARY
Dr. Yap Allan BERBELT 1/1
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva Ak 1/1
Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert 2 B B o A 1/1

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are posted on

both the Company’s and the Stock Exchange’s websites.

Audit Committee

Major roles and functions of the Audit Committee are as follows:

(a)

)

To consider the appointment, re-appointment and removal of
the auditor, and to approve the remuneration and the terms of
engagement of the auditor, and any questions of resignation
or dismissal of the auditor of the Company;

To review and monitor the independence and objectivity of the
auditor and effectiveness of the audit process and discuss with
the auditor the nature and scope of the audit and reporting

obligations;

To review annual report and accounts, half-year report before
submission to the Board;

To review the financial controls, internal controls and risk
management system of the Group and make recommendations
to the Board; and
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(e) To review the auditor’'s management letter and material
queries raised by the auditor to management in respect of
accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control

and management’s response.

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive
directors. The current members of the Audit Committee are Mr.
Poon Kwok Hing, Albert (who acts as chairman of the committee),
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva and Mr. Sin Chi Fai. All Audit Committee
members have appropriate qualifications and experience to properly

discharge its roles and responsibilities.

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Audit Committee held
two meetings to review with the management and the auditor the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2012
and the unaudited interim financial statements for the six months
ended 30 September 2012, with recommendations to the Board for
approval; to review the effectiveness of internal control system; and
to approve the audit and non-audit services provided by the auditor
for the year ended 31 March 2013. Individual attendance of each
Audit Committee member at these meetings is shown below:
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Audit Committee
Meetings attended/held

EHE STETZ
Audit Committee Member ERZEEE|RE ENZEEERARY
Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert % B AT A& 2/2
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva A 2/2
Mr. Sin Chi Fai EEE A 2/2

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are posted on both

the Company’s and the Stock Exchange’s websites.
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Auditor’s Remuneration

For the year ended 31 March 2013, the amount paid to Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu, the auditor of the Company in respect of the
audit and non-audit services provided are as follows:

ZE R &
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Amount

&5

(HK$'000)

Type of services BR 75 48 B (F#&7T)

Audit Bz 3,108

Non-audit services IEFIZIRTE

Taxation HiIE 59

Other services E M R 4,622

Total: A5t 7,789
Compliance with the Model Code for BIFEZETEEIZINESE

-

Securities Transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions (the “Model Code”). Having made
specific enquiry by the Company, all Directors have confirmed the
compliance with the required standard set out in the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 March 2013.
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Directors’ and Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Financial Statements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of financial
statements to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Group and of the results and cash flow for the period concerned.
In preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2013, the Directors have selected suitable accounting policies and,
apart from the new and revised accounting policies as disclosed
in the notes to the consolidated financial statements, applied
them consistently with previously financial periods. The Directors
have made judgements and estimates that are prudent, fair and
reasonable and the financial statements are prepared on a going
concern basis.

The reporting responsibilities of the auditor are set out in the
“Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 31 to 32.

Internal Controls

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining a sound
and effective system of internal control and for reviewing its
effectiveness, particularly in respect of the controls on financial,
operational, compliance and risk management, to achieve the
Company’s business strategies and the Group’s business operations.
The Board has adopted an internal control policy, which has been
developed with a primary objective of providing general guidance
and recommendations on a basic framework of internal control and
risk management. The aim of the Group's internal control policy is
to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss rather than to eliminate risks of failure in
operational systems and achievement of the objectives of the Group.
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Management has conducted reviews during the year on the
effectiveness of the internal control system covering material
controls in financial, operational and compliance areas, various
functions for risks management as well as physical and information
systems security. The Audit Committee has been reported twice
during the year, in conjunction with key findings identified by the
external auditor.

The Company has engaged an independent consultant to perform
internal controls design assessment of certain systems and to
prepare a report (the “Internal Controls Review Report”) to
enable the management of the Company to evaluate and provide
reasonable assurance on the effectiveness and efficiency of
operations, providing reliable financial reporting, complying with
applicable laws and regulations and, where appropriate, carry out
the recommended controls procedures of the Internal Controls
Review Report. The Audit Committee has reviewed the Internal

Controls Review Report.
Communication with Shareholders

The Company is committed to ensure on-going dialogue with
shareholders and provide shareholders with information necessary
to evaluate the performance of the Company. The Company
has maintained a website at www.hanny.com which enables
shareholders, investors and the general public to have an open
access to the information of the Company. Shareholders can obtain
full and timely information on the Company’'s website and can
assess current and historical company data. The annual and special
general meetings also provide the forum for the Board to meet
directly with the Shareholders. The procedures for Shareholders
to request the convening of a special general meeting and to
move a resolution at an annual general meeting are set out below.
Shareholders may write to the Board by addressing to the Company
Secretary at the principal office of the Company at 25/F, Paul Y.
Centre, 51 Hung To Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong, who
will forward such communication to the Board; or by sending an
email to enquiry@hanny.com providing their full name and contact

details.
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Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company can
deposit a written request at the principal office of the Company
to require a Special General Meeting ("SGM") to be called by the
Company. The written request must state the purposes of the
meeting, signed by the shareholders concerned, and may consist
of several documents in like form each signed by one or more of
the requisitionists. An SGM shall be held within 2 months after the
deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the
Company fails to proceed to convene an SGM, the requisitionists
may themselves convene a meeting, provided that such meeting
shall not be held after the expiration of 3 months from the said
date.

Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-twentieth of the total voting rights of the Company or
not less than one hundred members can deposit a written request
at the registered office of the Company to move a resolution at the
next annual general meeting. The written request must state the
notice of intended resolution and any statement of not more than
one thousand words with respect to the matter referred to in the
proposed resolution, signed by the shareholders concerned, and
may consist of several documents in like form each signed by one or
more of the requisitionists, together with a sum reasonably sufficient
to meet the Company’s expenses in giving effect thereto. Provided
that a requisition requiring notice of a resolution is deposited at
the registered office of the Company not less than six weeks before
the meeting, it shall be the duty of the Company to circulate to
members entitled to have notice of the meeting such notice of

intended resolution and any such statement.
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Report of the Directors
EEEHRE

The directors of the Company (the "Directors”) are pleased to
present to the shareholders their report and the audited financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for
the year ended 31 March 2013.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company and the Group is
principally engaged in trading of securities, industrial water supply
business, property development and trading and other strategic

investments.

The activities of the principal subsidiaries and associates of the
Company are set out in notes 50 and 22 respectively to the

consolidated financial statements.
Results

Details of the results of the Group for the year are set out in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on pages 33 to
35.

Dividend

The Board has recommended a final dividend of HK2 cents per
share for the year ended 31 March 2013 (2012: HK2 cents per
share) subject to approval of shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting ("AGM"). The proposed final dividend will be
payable on or about 27 September 2013.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the property, plant and equipment of the Group during
the year are set out in note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Properties under Development for
Sale

Details of the properties under development for sale of the Group
during the year are set out in note 27 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Share Capital

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Directors
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors:
Dr. Yap Allan (Chairman)
Mr. Heung Pik Lun, Edmond

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva

Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert

Mr. Sin Chi Fai

In accordance with bye-laws 87(2) and 87(3) of the Company's Bye-
laws, Dr. Yap Allan and Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva will retire from office
by rotation at the AGM and being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-election at the AGM.

None of the Directors eligible for re-election at the AGM has a
service contract with the Group which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation, other

than statutory compensation.
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Report of the Directors
EEEHRE

Interests of Directors

As at 31 March 2013, the interests and short positions of the
Directors in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO"))
which (a) were recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 352 of the SFO, or (b) were notified to the Company and
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange

(the “Listing Rules”) were as follows:

EEER

RZE-—Z=ZF=ZRA=+—H EFRAEAQ
AREEMAERER (EEREFMRAE
Pl (7875 R B 5G] ) EXVER) Z X
o HERD MEFPES (D TENR
EEFLRPERGIEIS2GMETZERL
A ROREEEBEZZMERAE
(TBE T )& Em R A (T EmARBN)
e+ (EMBTAESETESFIHH
FESTRD ([RESFR) BERMEARRE R
Bz i sm MORR AT

Approximate %
of the

Number of issued share

shares held capital of

Name Capacity (long position) the Company

FEROEE EERARE#T

HA 56 (FR) RABQOE DL

Dr. Yap Allan Beneficial Owner 260,361,882 23.21%
ERBEL EnfEAA

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2013, none of the directors
and chief executive of the Company had any interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) which were required (a) to be recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO; or (b) to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.

Share Option Scheme

Details of the share option scheme of the Company are set out in
note 44 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Arrangements to Purchase Shares or
Debentures

Save as disclosed herein, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

Directors’ Interests in Competing
Business

As at 31 March 2013, none of the Directors or their respective
associates had an interest in any business apart from the Group's
business, which competes or is likely to compete, either directly
or indirectly, with the Group’s business that need to be disclosed

pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts of
Significance

No contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the

year or at any time during the year.
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Report of the Directors
EEEHRE

Interests of Substantial Shareholders

As at 31 March 2013, the persons, other than a Director, who had
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

N2

TERR2HE

B

RIE—=F=RA=+—RH REARA
wREH LB EHDIE336GMEF 2B
fpracss - THAL (BREFUINRALR
AR AR AR IRE

Approximate % of
the issued share capital

Number of shares held of the Company
EERRABBRTRE
FEROEA BREI L
Long Lending Long Lending
Name Capacity position Pool position Pool
AHER AT
wE BB 54 ) a'37) ) 2B
Chan Kin (Note) Interest of controlled 56,429,833 - 5.03% -
corporation
R (Hiz) REQNRZER
Argyle Street Management Interest of controlled 56,429,833 - 5.03% -
Holdings Limited corporation
RERAZER
Citigroup Inc. Person having a security 62,740,038 6,309,805 5.60% 0.56%

interest in shares/
Custodian corporation/
approved lending agent
BERMEREZ 2 AL
AEDREEDREA

Note: Mr. Chan Kin is a controlling shareholder of Argyle Street
Management Holdings Limited according to the Individual Substantial
Shareholder Notice submitted by Mr. Chan Kin.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2013, the Company had
not been notified of any other interests or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company which were required to

be recorded in the register kept under Section 336 of the SFO.

i REREBILIERIZEARNRRERM:
% AArgyle Street Management Holdings
Limited 2 ¥ AR R ©

B EXHEBEEN R_E—=F=A4
=T B ARAMEETMNALTHNER
AR BB AR R () o BB (T E
smEOR B M AR BNIRER 5 LG &M
E336lkMiEF 2 B MR -

2” Hanny Holdings Limited « $3 & EHR AT



Major Customers and Suppliers
For the year ended 31 March 2013

(i)  the Group’s largest customer and the five largest customers
accounted for approximately 88.6% and 100% respectively of

the Group's total turnover,

(i)  the Group's largest supplier and five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 48% and 100% respectively of

the Group's total purchases.

So far as the Directors are aware, none of the Directors, their
associates or shareholders who owned more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital had any interests in the five largest
customers or suppliers of the Group.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the
Company’s Listed Securities

During the year ended 31 March 2013, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the

Company's listed securities.
Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws or the laws in Bermuda, which would oblige the Company

to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.
Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained

sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules.
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Report of the Directors
EEEHRE

Events After the Reporting Period

Details of the significant events after the reporting period are set

out in note 49 to the consolidated financial statements.

Group Financial Summary

A summary of the consolidated results and of the assets and
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on
page 176.

Corporate Governance

Information on Corporate Governance Practices adopted by the

Company is set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages
12 to 23.

Auditor

A resolution will be proposed at the AGM to re-appoint Deloitte

Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Dr. Yap Allan

Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 June 2013
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B M B AR

Deloitte.
=2

TO THE MEMBERS OF HANNY HOLDINGS LIMITED
BREWERAD

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hanny
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 33 to 175, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
March 2013, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B M % B AR

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’'s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the

consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March
2013 and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

28 June 2013
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

REETHEWER

For the year ended 31 March 2013 # %

—E—=F=A[A=F—HIFE

2013 2012
—E—-=F == 4E
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
k=3 FHERT FHIT
Turnover EER
— gross proceeds —FT1S IR B R 7 180,620 95,944
Continuing operations BESEER
Revenue from sales of HERFIEHEMERA
properties held for sale 160,000 55,350
Revenue from water supply business HIK LA 20,620 22,779
180,620 78,129
Cost of sales H & B A (170,117) (64,410)
Gross profit FE A 10,503 13,719
Other income Hp A 9 3,861 13,909
Other gains and losses, other expenses — E b Uk 25 &% &5 18
HAth B 52 10 (34,453) (52,382)
Administrative expenses T X (73,115) (79,383)
Finance costs %58 A 11 (8,842) (22,445)
Loss on fair value changes on RIEEEREZ
investments held for trading NI ELHEE (32,444) (2,023)
Share of results of associates JE (R Bt 2 N Bl 4R 3,690 (112,846)
Loss before income tax B FT 15 4 Al 5 18 (130,800) (241,451)
Income tax (expense) credit s (X H)iKe 13 (1,440) 23,164
Loss for the year from REFELEESH 2
continuing operations FRNEE 14 (132,240) (218,287)
Discontinued operation ERIEREER
Profit for the year from REERIEEEEBR 2
discontinued operation F Mg A 12 - 30,142
(132,240) (188,145)
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

REETHWER

For the year ended 31 March 2013 #Z - ZF—=#F=HA=+—HI FZF

2013 2012
—E—-=F =
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TR
Other comprehensive income (expense) H 2K A (FIx%)
Exchange differences arising on BMEBINEBFREEZ
translation of foreign operations PE H Z=%E 24,434 52,072
Share of other comprehensive income — JE{FE§ & AR H b2
(expense) of associates WA (FAX) 7,034 (1,145)
Fair value change on available-for-sale ~ AJ {5 &R E 2
investments NFEZS (1,296) (32,400)
Reclassify to profit or loss ENHEEER
- On disposal of subsidiaries — R E KB R R - (26,138)
— On impairment of available-for-sale —RAHIHERE
investments VoRIENSS - 15,928
Other comprehensive income for the year % A H fth 2 U A 30,172 8,317
Total comprehensive expense for the year & N2 [ 7 X 858 (102,068) (179,828)
Loss for the year attributable to: AT AT R EAEE :
Owners of the Company KRABHEE A
— Loss for the year from —REFELCEER
continuing operations Z FREE (126,720) (220,051)
— Profit for the year from —REERIELSE
discontinued operation T2 F Nim Al - 30,057
Loss for the year attributable to KRARHEE A
owners of the Company FEIEFEREE (126,720) (189,994)
Non-controlling interests IR =
— (Loss) profit for the year from —REFEEEET
continuing operations ZFEAN(FEE)
il (5.520) 1,764
— Profit for the year from —REERIELE
discontinued operation 7152 F N Al - 85
(Loss) profit for the year attributable to  JEE R #E 25 FE (5 & A
non-controlling interests (E1E) %= A (5.520) 1,849
(132,240) (188,145)
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2013 2012
—E-=F —E—_F
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
k=3 FTHERT T
Total comprehensive expense LANALTEGEERE
attributable to: Sz 4858
Owners of the Company KAREE A (96,847) (184,121)
Non-controlling interests FEFE IR HE (5,221) 4,293
(102,068) (179,828)
Loss per share FEE 17
From continuing and discontinued REBFESEEBR
operations ERIEEEEK
- Basic and diluted —EARL#E HK$(0.11) BT  HK$(0.17)8 T
From continuing operations REFEKSE L
— Basic and diluted —EARRE#E HK$(0.11)B T  HK$(0.20)4 7T
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e B AR R

At 31 March 2013 R-ZE—=#=H=+—H

2013 2012
—E-=F —E—=F
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
i3 THER TR
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ER Y 18 87,208 88,982
Prepaid lease payments FENHEERMK 19 5,578 6,575
Intangible assets mHEE 20 28,887 33,641
Goodwill [EES 21 - 714
Interests in associates N T E RS 22 222,806 232,582
Available-for-sale investments AEHERE 23 102,053 120,385
Deposit for acquisition of interest in Wt B — P 3 @) 4% il
a jointly controlled entity ERER R 25 350,000 350,000
Deposit for acquisition of subsidiaries WENRB AR ZF & 49 250,000 250,000
Properties under development for sale  FEZERF YW E 27 - 1,711,411
Club debentures EES 6,020 3,920
Deferred tax assets BT IEE E 37 31 31
1,052,583 2,798,241
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Prepaid lease payments FENHEERMK 19 619 612
Inventories, at cost FE (EKA) 547 351
Properties held for sale FIEHEME 26 79,115 230,235
Properties under development for sale  fFE3REp Y2 27 2,316,201 =
Trade and other receivables and B 5 & H i FEYRIE &
prepayments SRS 28 661,349 68,689
Available-for-sale investments AIEEERE 23 - 76,800
Investments held for trading FEEEKRE 29 42,765 6,932
Short-term loans receivable FE U EAE 3R 30 4,416 5,000
Loans to associates HBTEERNRER 37 87,838 87,831
Tax recoverable Al R B 18 5,470 5,470
Bank balances and cash RITEBRNIRE 32 496,651 818,441
3,694,971 1,300,361

&
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2013 2012

—E-=F —E——F
NOTES HKS$'000 HK$’000
Kt FH& T FET
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Trade and other payables and accruals & 5 K £ th F& {7 718 &
EEtE R 33 266,245 242,024
Amount due to an associate JE A — R Bt 2 2 B SR IE 31 1,437 1,437
Deposits received in advance FEWET & 39 190,259 203,914
Tax payable JE 1~ 75t 18 16,594 16,610
Borrowings — due within one year B ——FAEH 34 117,664 215,936
592,199 679,921
NET CURRENT ASSETS mEEEFE 3,102,772 620,440
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEHEERRBEE
LIABILITIES 4,155,355 3,418,681
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEAXR#E
Share capital &N 35 11,213 11,213
Share premium and reserves f& 10 % B M 2,515,574 2,698,029
Equity attributable to owners of RNRATIER ANEMER
the Company 2,526,787 2,709,242
Non-controlling interests JEIE R HE = 868,468 697,573
TOTAL EQUITY RSP 3,395,255 3,406,815
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBEE
Borrowings — due after one year B ——F &0 34 749,064 =
Deferred tax liabilities BEEFIAEE 37 11,036 11,866
760,100 11,866
4,155,355 3,418,681

The consolidated financial statements on pages 33 to 175 were BEeIRN = A_t+N\Bit
approved and authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on 28 /R ZE T FE33F 1758 2 424 M KR

June 2013 and are signed on its behalf by: X HBAUTATREESE:
Dr. Yap Allan Mr. Heung Pik Lun, Edmond
ExEEL ) 2 f £ &
CHAIRMAN DIRECTOR

EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

RERREZEFER

For the year ended 31 March 2013 B Z=—F—=F=HA=+—HIFF

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

ARAREREARS
Accumulated
Convertible Currency Capital  Investment losses Non-
Share Share  loan notes  Contrib lati Jempti luati Other (retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve surplus reserve reserve reserve reserves profits) Total interests equity
TERER % -t R# RithR
Bx RAEE RERE R4z RRRE RE&E iR EbRE  (REXA) Rt FBRER REHE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TAL Thn Tin Tin Tin TiEr TiEx TiEx TEn TiEn TR
(note ) (note b)
(Hita) (fiitn)
At 1 April 2011 R=F-——4MmA-R 1,246 1,304,930 28,151 1,508,541 100,086 592 43,974 (246,596) (106,770) 2,634,154 120,269 2,754,423
(Loss) profit for the year FM(EE)RH - - - - - - - - (189,994) (189,994) 1,849 (188,145)
Other comprehensive income ~ FAEM2EHA

(expense) for the year (A%) = = = = 23,490 = (16,472) (1,145) = 5873 2,444 8317
Total comprehensive income ~~ FAZERA (%)

(expense) for the year Et = = = = 23,490 = (16,472) (1,145) (189,994) (184,121) 4,293 (179,828)
Rights issue ik 9,967 289,048 - - - - - - - 299,015 - 299,015
Shares issue expenses RAETRS = (6,178) - - - - - - - (6,178) - (6,178)
Transfer upon maturity of AR BNER

convertible notes - - (28,151) - - - - - 28,151 - - -
Disposal of partial interestin (& —FKEAFHH

a subsidiary without losing BRMAEXRGE

control = = = = = = = (11,202) = (11,202) 618,815 607,613
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAR - - - - - - - - - - 960 960
Dividend recognized as ERRRARZKSE

distribution - - - - - - - - (22,426) (22,426) - (22,426)
Dividends paid to BRERRERRS

non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - - - (46,764) (46,764)
At 31 March 2012 S S

=fA=t-A 1,213 1,587,800 = 1,508,541 123,576 592 27,502 (258,943) (291,039) 2,709,242 697,573 3,406,815
Loss for the year FRER - - - - - - - - (126,720) (126,720) (5,520) (132,240)
Other comprehensive income ~ FAEMRERA

(expense) for the year (%) - - - - 24,135 - (1,296) 7,034 - 29,873 299 30,172
Total comprehensive income ~~ FRZERA (%)

(expense) for the year etk - - - - 24135 - (1,296) 7,034 (126,720) (96,847) (5,221) (102,068)
Transfer of reserves to BRRBEZHER

accumulated losses - - - - (2,903) - 5732 - (2,829) - - -
Transfer of contributed surplus ~ BAEHRHZZ5HEIE

to accumulated losses - - - (500,000) - - - - 500,000 - - -
Disposal of partial interest HE-HNBARES

in a subsidiary without Bl MEX R E

losing control - - - - - - - (63,182) - (63,182) 185,297 122,115
Dividend recognized as ERRBARLKS

distribution - - - - - - - - (22,426) (22,426) - (22,426)
Dividends paid to BRiEERERERS

non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - - - (9,181) (9,181)
At 31 March 2013 R=%2-=F

=A=t-A 1,213 1,587,800 - 1,008,541 144,808 592 31,938 (315,091) 56,986 2,526,787 868,468 3,395,255
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Notes:

(a)

The contributed surplus of the Company at the end of reporting period
represented:

(i) the credit arising from the transfer of the share premium
account of the Company as at 20 February 1998 and 19
February 2003 to the contributed surplus account of the
Company;

(i) the credit arising from the reduction of the nominal value of the
shares of the Company in 1999, 2003, 2009 and 2011; and

(iiiy a balance as reduced by amounts transferred to the deficit
account to eliminate the deficit of the Group as at 31 January
2000, 31 January 2001, 20 March 2003, 31 March 2005 and 28
March 2013.

The other reserves of the Company at the end of reporting period

mainly represented:

(i) the difference between the consideration paid for the
acquisition of additional equity interests in Best Smooth
International Limited and its subsidiaries and the carrying
amount of non-controlling interests acquired amounting to
HK$251,561,000 in 2011;

(i)  the share of net assets value of an associate transferred from
a non-wholly owned subsidiary to another wholly owned
subsidiary upon transfer of interest in an associate between
subsidiaries in 2011;

(iii)  the difference between the carrying amount of the 41%
and 8% interests transferred and the consideration received
respectively in relation to the disposal of partial equity interests
in China Good Investments Limited. Details of these are set out
in note 27; and

(iv)  the share of the currency translation reserve and investment
revaluation reserve of the associates.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2013 #Z — 2

—=FZA=t—AUFE

2013 2012
== —EF—_F
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt it FTHER FHT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES ReER
Loss before income tax: B P45 2% AT S 18 -
Continuing operations B EET (130,800) (241,451)
Discontinued operation BRI EER - 29,158
Adjustments for: M I SEMEL 2 A
Interest income B2 WA (455) (9,890)
Dividend income iz B A (204) (281)
Finance costs W% ER 8,842 22,445
Loss on fair value change on REEBEREQNTE
investments held for trading ) EiE 32,444 2,023
Loss on deemed disposal of ﬁf’ﬁtﬂﬁ fE B =& A &
partial interests of an associate DiEw 2B 655 -
Impairment loss on goodwill %%Zﬁfﬁféﬂé 714 6,155
Impairment loss on intangible assets EVEEZREEBE 2,141 =
Impairment loss on property, Y M RFEZ
plant and equipment BB RSB 4,122 =
Impairment loss on BRBENRZ
prepaid lease payments B RSB 459 =
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AHEEREZ
investments BIEEE 18,000 15,928
Impairment loss on amount FE g — I Bt & A R SRIB
due from an associate Z R EEE - 1,255
Impairment loss on properties FEHEMEZ
held for sale HEE 8 - 15,448
Gain on replacement of AR RIEB ] 2 WS
convertible note - (1,468)
Gain on disposal of convertible note HEARKRERE 2 W - (13,451)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAR 2K
included in profit for the year from BEEFAFAREBE
discontinued operation MR\ TS 2 0 A 40 - (27,560)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—HERBAFZ
W 2= 40 - (1,309)
Share of results of associates FE G Bok 5 A R 364 (3,690) 112,846
Impairment loss on other receivables Hh fE R IE 2
BIEE R 6,435 164
Amortization of intangible assets By EEEE 2,613 3,441
Depreciation of property, M R REETE
plant and equipment 11,798 12,007
Release of prepaid lease payment TR & s 611 603
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, HEYE B R
plant and equipment Btz (W) B8 (173) 1
Written-off of property, s 5 - Hes Rk
plant and equipment 657 135

2)
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2013 2012
—E—-=F —EF——F
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
i3 FTHERT T
Operating cash flows before RitEBEESEH 2
movements in working capital KERBME (45,831) (73,801)
(Increase) decrease in inventories & (8mn)md (192) 426
Decrease (increase) in properties REHEMFER D
held for sale (#n) 77,530 (22,754)
Increase in properties under FEEREPYELM
development for sale (579,855) (20,669)
(Increase) decrease in trade and B 5 N H i fE W RIE K
other receivables and prepayments TEAT IR (38 00) /4 (581,757) 19,044
Increase in investments held for trading #1EE Fi% & # N (68,277) (3,580)
Increase (decrease) in trade and E 5N EMENFIER
other payables and accruals FESTEREM O 2) 32,885 (185,578)
Decrease (increase) in deposits received  FBULET & 5t 4> (& 0)
in advance (16,000) 16,000
Cash from operations KSR EE 2R E (1,181,497) (270,912)
Income tax paid EIFT1SHL (2,318) (8,412)
NET CASH USED IN REXBDHAZREFH
OPERATING ACTIVITIES (1,183,815) (279,324)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AERTMER

For the year ended 31 March 2013 B Z=—F—=F=HA=+—HIFF

2013 2012
—E-=F =
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
i3 THER TR
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REXK
Proceeds from disposal of HEATHEEREZ
available-for-sale investments Ffr 1S K18 76,800 =
Repayment of short-term loans receivable {& & /& I 52 HA & X 9,750 -
Dividend received from an associate Bl — MBS A El R A 5,000 =
Repayment from associates GENEIR 1,329 20,157
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE HWBERZHEZ
plant and equipment Fr 1S 3018 520 5
Interest received Wz 2, 485 8,133
Dividend received WFZ A% B 204 281
Purchase of property, BEME M RH
plant and equipment (14,384) (15,486)
Advance of short-term loans receivable 24/ & i 45 B & 7k (9,166) =
Acquisition of assets through FBUYEE —FEME AR
acquisition of a subsidiary WEE & = 38 (6,500) (10,000)
Purchase of club debentures BEgMES (2,100) =
Advance to associates 48 T EEE N R B (1,336) (119)
Proceeds from disposal of HETREBRERZ
convertible note P15 5018 - 311,850
Balance payment received for disposal of &AW E 2
investment properties B U 4 A FUE - 150,550
Disposal of subsidiaries (net of HEKB AR (305
cash and cash equivalent disposed of) HEZEE X
Re%EEAR) 40 - 27,831
Deposit for acquisition of subsidiaries WEK B AR Z5] & - (250,000)
NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEBELEZRELFHE 60,602 243,202
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2013 2012
—E-=F —E—_F
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
k=3 FTHERT T
FINANCING ACTIVITIES Rl & K
New borrowings raised I ER 807,064 150,040
Proceeds from disposal of partial interest & — & i & A 7]
in a subsidiary without losing control o= mTEK
PRI HE 2 PG IR 122,115 607,613
Repayments of borrowings BEER (76,176) (189,962)
Dividend paid B AR & (22,426) (22,426)
Interest paid EATFE (20,540) (17,421)
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests & 15 FE3% A% 4 25 2 f% &2, (9,181) (46,764)
Proceeds from issue of rights shares BATHAR R 2 FT 15 5RA - 299,015
Share issue expenses ipEEITHE - (6,178)
Redemption of convertible loan notes & 6] 2| B 2 A] #2 %
upon maturity BERER 36 - (364,475)
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEXKEL2HERHE 800,856 409,442
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN RekREEHEER
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R 2 ) B inEE (322,357) 373,320
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FHzREeRESE
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR Z@EEAR 818,441 443,763
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE ExEEH &
RATE CHANGES 567 1,358
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ATEND EFRZHREERBRE
OF THE YEAR, represented by bank ZLEEB  H/RT
balances and cash e YN K 496,651 818,441
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2013 B Z=—F—=F=HA=+—HIFF

General

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda on 3 September
1991 as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended) and its shares
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). The address of the registered office of the
Company is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM
11, Bermuda and the address of the principal place of business
of the Company is 25th Floor, Paul Y. Centre, 51 Hung To

Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is also the functional currency of the

Company.

Application of New and Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.

Amendments to Deferred Tax: Recovery of

HKAS 12 Underlying Assets; and
Amendments to Financial Instruments:
HKFRS 7 Disclosures — Transfers of

Financial Assets

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current
year has had no impact on the Group's financial performance
and positions for the current and prior years and/or on the

disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

)
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Application of New and Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised

HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

FERFE] R < BB
BHREER ([ FEBMHRS
A1) (&)

752 B R A FE R T 51 2 28 M 1B 1
RERZFHE] RRIERTEBUBRE

Amendments to
HKFRSs

Amendments to
HKFRS 7

Amendments to
HKFRS 9 and
HKFRS 7

Amendments to

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11
and HKFRS 12

Amendments to
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12
and HKAS 27

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 10

HKFRS 11

HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13

HKAS 19
(as revised in 2011)

HKAS 27
(as revised in 2011)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2009 - 2011 Cycle!

Disclosures — Offsetting Financial
Assets And Financial Liabilities’

Mandatory Effective Date of HKFRS 9
and Transition Disclosures’

Consolidated Financial Statements,
Joint Arrangements and Disclosure
of Interests in Other Entities:
Transition Guidance’

Investment Entities?

Financial Instruments’
Consolidated Financial Statements’
Joint Arrangements’
Disclosure of Interests in

Other Entities’
Fair Value Measurement’

Employee Benefits’

Separate Financial Statements’
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2013 B Z=—F—=F=HA=+—HIFF

2.

Application of New and Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

HKAS 28

(as revised in 2011)

Amendments to
HKAS 1

Amendments to
HKAS 32

Amendments to
HKAS 36

HK(IFRIC) — Int 20

HK(IFRIC) — Int 21

’ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2013.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
20174.

E Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2015.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012.

Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures’

Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income?

Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities?

Recoverable Amount Disclosures for
Non-Financial Assets?

Stripping Costs in the Production
Phase of a Surface Mine’

Levies?

FERFE] R AEIEET 2 & B F
BHREER ([ FEBMHERS
ZA]) (&

BEEHENFE RBERARSELEZ
(Z2——FgET) RE

BEEHENF IR E2IEMEARRER
CHES)

BAGERENE ABMBEERMBAR
CHES)

BAGERE3CHE FMBEELTREEHE

(BETAR) b

BE (ARMBERE BRBESEERRD
REBZE®) FIRB A
—REE205%

5% (ARBHBRSE B
REBZE®)

3T Ak

" O RZFE—ZF-HA—HEZERHE
ZFERIR LR

2 R-F-mFE-A-HEZERME
ZFERRE LR

P R-F-AF-—HA—HRZERE
ZFRHR LR

¢ ROFE-——F+HA-HRAZERG
ZFERIR LR
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Application of New and Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial assets.
HKFRS 9 amended in 2010 includes the requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial liabilities and for

derecognition.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:

o All recognized financial assets that are within the scope
of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement are subsequently measured at amortized
cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are
held within a business model whose objective is to collect
the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal outstanding are generally
measured at amortized cost at the end of subsequent
accounting periods. All other debt investments and
equity investments are measured at their fair values at
the end of subsequent reporting periods. In addition,
under HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election
to present subsequent changes in the fair value of an
equity investment (that is not held for trading) in other
comprehensive income, with only dividend income
generally recognized in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B HRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2013 B Z=—F—=F=HA=+—HIFF

2. Application of New and Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS
9 requires that the amount of change in the fair value
of the financial liability that is attributable to changes
in the credit risk of that liability is presented in other
comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the
effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair
value of financial liabilities attributable to changes in
the financial liabilities” credit risk are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the entire
amount of the change in the fair value of the financial
liability designated as fair value through profit or loss was
presented in profit or loss.

HKFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2015, with earlier application permitted.

Except for the available-for-sale investments, the directors

anticipate that the application of HKFRS 9 will not affect the

classification and measurement of the Group's other financial

assets and liabilities. Regarding the Group’s available-for-

sale investment, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable

estimate of that effect until a detailed review has been

completed.

)
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Application of New and Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint

arrangements, associates and disclosures

In June 2011, a package of five standards on consolidation,
joint arrangements, associates and disclosures was issued,
including HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11, HKFRS 12, HKAS 27 (as revised
in 2011) and HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011).

Key requirements of these five standards are described below.

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements that deal with consolidated
financial statements. HK (SIC) — Int 12 Consolidation — Special
Purpose Entities will be withdrawn upon the effective date
of HKFRS 10. Under HKFRS 10, there is only one basis for
consolidation, that is, control. In addition, HKFRS 10 includes
a new definition of control that contains three elements: (a)
power over an investee, (b) exposure, or rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee, and (c) the
ability to use its power over the investee to affect the amount
of the investor’s returns. Extensive guidance has been added in
HKFRS 10 to deal with complex scenarios.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B HRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2013 B Z=—F—=F=HA=+—HIFF

2.

Application of New and Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint

arrangements, associates and disclosures (Continued)

HKFRS 12 is a disclosure standard and is applicable to entities
that have interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements,
associates and/or unconsolidated structured entities. In
general, the disclosure requirements in HKFRS 12 are more
extensive than those in the current standards.

In July 2012, the amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and
HKFRS 12 were issued to clarify certain transitional guidance
on the application of these five HKFRSs for the first time.

These five standards, together with the amendments relating
to the transitional guidance, are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2013 with earlier application
permitted provided that all of these standards are applied at
the same time.
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Application of New and Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint

arrangements, associates and disclosures (Continued)

The directors anticipate that these five standards will be
adopted in the consolidated financial statements for the
annual period beginning 1 April 2013. The application of these
five standards is not expected to have a significant impact on
the consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for fair value
measurements and disclosures about fair value measurements.
The standard defines fair value, establishes a framework for
measuring fair value, and requires disclosures about fair value
measurements. The scope of HKFRS 13 is broad; it applies to
both financial instrument items and non-financial instrument
items for which other HKFRSs require or permit fair value
measurements and disclosures about fair value measurements,
except in specified circumstances. In general, the disclosure
requirements in HKFRS 13 are more extensive than those in the
current standards. For example, quantitative and qualitative
disclosures based on the three-level fair value hierarchy
currently required for financial instruments only under HKFRS
7 Financial Instruments. Disclosures will be extended by HKFRS

13 to cover all assets and liabilities within its scope.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 B Z=—F—=F=HA=+—HIFF

2.

2)

Application of New and Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement (Continued)

HKFRS 13 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1 January 2013, with earlier application permitted.

The directors anticipate that the application of this new
standard is not expected to affect the measurement and
presentation of the Group’s assets and liabilities reported in
the consolidated financial statements but may result in more
extensive disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of Other

Comprehensive Income

The amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income introduce new terminology for the
statement of comprehensive income and income statement.
Under the amendments to HKAS 1, a ‘statement of
comprehensive income’ is renamed as a ‘statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income’. The amendments
to HKAS 1 retain the option to present profit or loss and
other comprehensive income in either a single statement or
in two separate but consecutive statements. However, the
amendments to HKAS 1 require items of other comprehensive
income to be grouped into two categories: (a) items that will
not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss; and (b) items
that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when
specific conditions are met. Income tax on items of other
comprehensive income is required to be allocated on the same
basis — the amendments do not change the option to present
items of other comprehensive income either before tax or net
of tax.
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Application of New and Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of Other

Comprehensive Income (Continued)

The amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for annual period
beginning on or after 1 July 2012. The presentation of items
of other comprehensive income will be modified accordingly
when the amendments are applied in future accounting
periods.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
other new and revised HKFRSs will have no material impact on
the consolidated financial statements.

Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and

by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments
that are measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below. Historical cost is generally based on the
fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B HRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2013 B Z=—F—=F=HA=+—HIFF

3.

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved where the Company has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain
benefits from its activities.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the effective date of acquisition

and up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies

into line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented

separately from the Group’s equity therein.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Allocation of total comprehensive income to non-controlling

interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary is
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing

subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control
over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions.
The carrying amounts of the Group's interests and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted
and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognized directly in equity and attributed to owners of the

Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2013 &

3.
(Continued)

FoT—

Significant Accounting Policies

=FE=ZA=+—HIFE

3.

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing

subsidiaries (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it (i)

derecognizes the assets (including any goodwill) and liabilities

of the subsidiary at their carrying amounts at the date

when control is lost, (ii) derecognizes the carrying amount

of any non-controlling interests in the former subsidiary at

the date when control is lost (including any components of

other comprehensive income attributable to them), and (iii)

recognizes the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration

received and the fair value of any retained interest, with

any resulting difference being recognized as a gain or loss

in profit or loss attributable to the Group. When assets of

the subsidiary are carried at revalued amounts or fair values

and the related cumulative gain or loss has been recognized

in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity,

the amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive

income and accumulated in equity are accounted for as if

the Group had directly disposed of the related assets (i.e.

reclassified to profit or loss or transferred directly to retained

earnings as specified by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value

of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the

date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on

initial recognition for subsequent accounting under HKAS 39

Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement or, when

applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in

an associate or a jointly controlled entity.

2)
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Acquisition of subsidiaries which are not businesses

The cost of the acquisition is allocated to the individual
identifiable assets and liabilities on the basis of their relative
fair values at the date of acquisition. No goodwill or discount
on acquisition is recognized upon the acquisition of interest in
a subsidiary.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost less any accumulated impairment losses, if any, and is
presented separately in the consolidated statement of financial

position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the cash-generating units (or groups of cash-
generating units), that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment annually or more frequently whenever
there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. For
goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting period, the
cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment before the end of that reporting period.
If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less
than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss
is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the unit first and then to the other assets of
the unit pro rata on a basis based on the carrying amount
of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill
is recognized directly in profit or loss in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. An impairment loss for
goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a
joint venture. Significant influence is the power to participate
in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee

but is not control or joint control over those policies.

—=F=HA=+—HIFFE

Hanny Holdings Limited « $3 B 5@ HRA A

SRR (&)

mE(E)

I

BOEREBIREELENTFIEM
BRI YRERRBREBELA
BE Rl 1B PS5 5B 4R 3 1B ORL (BRI &L i 0
R—pRETRBMEERE A
ERZPRARAHEDEEE 2R
CELEMETRENR HREE
HE B2 AR E S BERZELML 2R
H{E - A& £ KR ERE D R ET
Wz B D 28 2 RmEE
HieBRBEZEVANGEEEZ RE
BREPIDEEZENAEMEE -
Eﬂﬁ%ﬂ@%%ﬁﬁ&wé%ﬁ%
mAPZESER - AEREBED
SRERARED -

HeHERRRSELBENRK 5 E
HEBRSBRTEtARERES
B

AR E

_\Il:1
TN‘
S
\
EI

BERRRAREUEEERTEN
ZAE BN FEHBARREERE
BE EAFENES2HERIRER
A R R EREORR 2 B
TR 1) 2k A [P 2 ) 5% S SR



Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Investments in associates (Continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. The financial statements of
associates used for equity accounting purposes are prepared
using uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for
like transaction and events in similar circumstances. Under
the equity method, investments in associates are initially
recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognize the Group's
share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income
of the associates. When the Group’s share of losses of an
associate equals or exceeds its interest in that associate (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part
of the Group’s net investment in the associate), the Group
discontinues recognizing its share of further losses. Additional
losses are recognized only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on

behalf of that associate.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of an associate recognized at the date of
acquisition is recognized as goodwill, which is included within

the carrying amount of the investment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Investments in associates (Continued)

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over
the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognized

immediately in profit or loss.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognize any impairment loss with
respect to the Group's investment in an associate. When
necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance
with HKAS 36 /mpairment of Assets as a single asset by
comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use
and fair value less costs to sell) with its carrying amount. Any
impairment loss recognized forms part of the carrying amount
of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is
recognized in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the
recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.

When a group entity transacts with its associate, profits and
losses resulting from the transactions with the associate are
recognized in the Group's consolidated financial statements
only to the extent of interests in the associate that are not
related to the Group.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods sold and services provided in the normal course of

business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from water supply operations is recognized when
goods are delivered; revenue from sale of properties is
recognized when the properties are delivered to the buyers, at
which time all the following conditions are satisfied:

o the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant

risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

o the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

. the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

o it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the transaction will flow to the Group; and

o the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the

transaction can be measured reliably.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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£

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Deposits and installments received from purchasers sale of

properties prior to this stage are included in current liabilities.

Management service income is recognized when services are

provided.

Rental income, including rentals invoiced in advance from
properties let under operating leases, is recognized on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognized when it
is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest
income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which
is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognized when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established
(provided that it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Group and the amount of revenue can be

measured reliably).
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services, or
for administrative purposes are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses,

if any.

Depreciation is recognized so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for an a

prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is included in profit or loss.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as

operating leases.
The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognized in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term. Contingent rentals
arising under operating leases are recognized as an expense in

the period in which they are incurred.
Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance
or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as
to whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of each element have been transferred to the
Group, unless it is clear that both elements are operating
leases in which case the entire lease is classified as an
operating lease. Specifically, the minimum lease payments
(including any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated
between the land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the land
element and building element of the lease at the inception of
the lease.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Leasing (Continued)
Leasehold land and building (Continued)

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for
as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments”
in the consolidated statement of financial position and is
amortized over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in
the respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates)
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not

retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit or

loss for the period.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates prevailing
at the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses
items are translated at the average exchange rates for the year,
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period,
in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity under the heading of currency translation reserve

(attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, a disposal involving loss of joint control over
a jointly controlled entity that includes a foreign operation,
or a disposal involving loss of significant influence over
an associate that includes a foreign operation), all of the
exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the Company are
reclassified to profit or loss. In addition, in relation to a partial
disposal of a subsidiary that does not result in the Group
losing control over the subsidiary, the proportionate share of
accumulated exchange differences are reattributed to non-
controlling interests and are not recognized in profit or loss.
For all other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals of associates
or jointly controlled entities that do not result in the Group
losing significant influence or joint control), the proportionate
share of the accumulated exchange differences is reclassified

to profit or loss.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation on
or after 1 January 2005 are treated as assets and liabilities of
that foreign operation and retranslated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are recognized in equity under the heading

of currency translation reserve.
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost
of those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned
on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the

borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.

All other borrowing costs are recognized in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes and
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognized as an
expense when employees have rendered service entitling them
to the contributions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently

payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit before income tax as
reported in the profit or loss because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for
all deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognized if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit

nor the accounting profit.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and interests are
only recognized to the extent that it is probable that there
will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilize the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to

reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realized, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HRRMEE
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3.

)

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Current and deferred tax is recognized in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognized in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Club debentures

Club debentures are measured at cost less any impairment

losses.
Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
are recognized separately from goodwill and are initially
recognized at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is

regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with finite
useful lives are carried at costs less accumulated amortization
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortization
for intangible assets with finite useful lives is provided
on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
Alternatively, intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are
carried at cost less any subsequent accumulated impairment
losses (see the accounting policy in respect of impairment

losses on tangible and intangible assets below).
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
(Continued)

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured at the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognized in the profit or loss in the period when the asset is

derecognized.
Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost or net
realizable value. Cost comprises all costs of purchase and other
direct cost to acquire the properties. Net realizable value is
calculated at the actual or estimated selling price less related

costs necessary to the sale.
Properties under development for sale

Properties under development which are developed for future
sale in ordinary course of business are stated at the lower of
cost and net realizable value. Cost comprises land and related
development costs directly attributable to the properties under
development for sale. Net realizable value is determined by
reference to professional valuations based on prevailing market
conditions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 Bl Z=—F—=F=HA=+—HIF&

3.

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable
value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average method.
Net realizable value represents the estimated selling price for
inventories less all estimated costs of completion and cost

necessary to make the sale.
Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the

instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognized

immediately in profit or loss.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into one of the three
categories, including financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and receivables and available-for-sale
financial assets. The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time
of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognized and derecognized on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortized cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the

net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognized on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 B Z=F—=F=HA=+—HIF&

3. Significant Accounting Policies 3.

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss represents

financial assets held for trading.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

in the near future; or

hedging instrument.

it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling

it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial
instruments that the Group manages together and has a

recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are

measured at fair value, with changes in fair value arising from

measurement recognized directly in profit or loss in the period

in which they arise. The net gain or loss recognized in profit or

loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on the financial

assets.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables (including trade and other receivables, short-term
loans receivable, loans to associates and bank balances and
cash) are carried at amortized cost using the effective interest
method, less any identified impairment losses (see accounting

policy on impairment of financial assets below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated or not classified as financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, loans and receivables or held-to-

maturity investments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that are classified
as available-for-sale financial assets and are traded in an
active market are measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. Changes in the carrying amount of available-
for-sale monetary financial assets relating to interest income
calculated using the effective interest method and dividends
on available-for-sale equity investments are recognized in profit
or loss. Other changes in the carrying amount of available-
for-sale financial assets are recognized in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of investment
revaluation reserve. When the investment is disposed of or
is determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss
previously accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve
is reclassified to profit or loss (see the accounting policy in
respect of impairment of financial assets below).

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognized in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive
the dividends is established.

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a
qguoted market price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured, they are measured at cost less
any identified impairment losses at the end of each reporting
period (see accounting policy on impairment of financial assets

below).
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at fair value through profit
or loss, are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end
of the reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be
impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the

financial assets have been affected.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment below its
cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment

could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or

counterparty; or

o breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in

interest or principal payments; or
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2013 & Z =&

3.

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or financial re-organization; or

3 the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade and
other receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on
a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
a portfolio of receivables could include the Group's past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number
of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit
period of one to two months, observable changes in national
or local economic conditions that correlate with default on

receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortized cost, the amount
of impairment loss recognized is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original

effective interest rate.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of
return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will

not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade and other receivables, where the carrying
amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are
recognized in profit or loss. When a receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are

credited to profit or loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be
impaired, accumulative gains or losses previously recognized in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in
the period in which the impairment takes place.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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3.

)

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets measured at amortized cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment losses was recognized, the
previously recognized impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortized cost would have been had the impairment

not been recognized.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments
will not be reversed in profit or loss in subsequent periods.
Any increase in fair value subsequent to impairment loss
is recognized directly in other comprehensive income and

accumulated in investment revaluation reserve.
Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity instruments in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a

financial liability and an equity instrument.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are

recognized at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortized cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the

net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognized on an effective interest basis.
Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables,
amount due to an associate and borrowings) are subsequently

measured at amortized cost, using the effective interest
method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2013 B Z=F—=F=HA=+—HIF&

3.

%

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the
issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder
for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the original or modified

terms of a debt instrument.

A financial guarantee contract issued by the Group and not
designated as at fair value through profit or loss is recognized
initially at its fair value less transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issue of the financial guarantee contract.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group measures the
financial guarantee contact at the higher of: (i) the amount
of obligation under the contract, as determined in accordance
with HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets; and (ii) the amount initially recognized less, when
appropriate, cumulative amortization recognized in accordance

with the revenue recognition policy.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition

The Group derecognizes a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group continues to recognize the asset
to the extent of its continuing involvement and recognizes
an associated liability. If the Group retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognize the financial asset and
also recognizes a collateralized borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognized in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity is recognized in profit or
loss.

The Group derecognizes financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognized and the consideration paid and

payable is recognized in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRE

For the year ended 31 March 2013 &

3.
(Continued)

FoT—

Significant Accounting Policies

=FE=ZA=+—HIFE

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets other than

goodwill (see the accounting policy in respect of goodwill

above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the

carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with

finite useful lives to determine whether there is any indication

that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any

such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is

estimated in order to determine

the extent of the impairment

loss, if any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable

amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the

recoverable amount of the cash-

generating unit to which the

asset belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis of

allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated

to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are

allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for

which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be

identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to

sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated

future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a

pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments

of the time value of money and

the risks specific to the asset

for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been

adjusted.

<
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets other than
goodwill (see the accounting policy in respect of goodwill

above) (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognized immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognized for the
asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognized as income immediately.

Key Sources of Estimation
Uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

)

For the year ended 31 March 2013 & Z =&

4.

2)

Bt 5 ARk Y A

Key Sources of Estimation
Uncertainty (Continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and

future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and

liabilities within the next financial year.
Estimated impairment of intangible assets and goodwill

Determining whether intangible assets and goodwill are
impaired requires an estimation of the value in use of the
cash-generating units to which intangible assets and goodwill
have been allocated. The value in use calculation requires the
Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise
from the cash-generating unit and a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value. Where the actual future
cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment
loss may arise. The management performed an impairment
assessment on intangible assets and goodwill and impairment
loss of HK$2,141,000 and HK$714,000 were recognized for
intangible assets and goodwill respectively in the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2013 (2012:
As at 31
March 2013, the carrying amount of intangible assets was
HK$28,887,000 (2012: HK$33,641,000) and of goodwill was
HK$nil (2012: HK$714,000) respectively.

impairment loss on goodwill of HK$6,155,000).

—=F=HA=+—HIFFE

4.
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Key Sources of Estimation
Uncertainty (Continued)

Estimated impairment of property, plant and equipment and

prepaid lease payments

Determining whether property, plant and equipment and
prepaid lease payments are impaired requires an estimation
of the value in use of the cash-generating units to which
property, plant and equipment and prepaid lease payments
have been allocated. The value in use calculation requires the
Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from
the cash-generating units and a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate the present value. Where the actual future cash
flows are less than expected, a material impairment loss may
arise. The management performed an impairment assessment
on property, plant and equipment and prepaid lease payments
and impairment loss of HK$4,122,000 and HK$459,000,
respectively, was recognized in respect of the year ended 31
March 2013 (2012: HK$nil). As at 31 March 2013, the carrying
amounts of property, plant and equipment and prepaid
lease payments were HK$87,208,000 and HK$6,197,000,
respectively (2012: HK$88,982,000 and HK$7,187,000,

respectively).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2013 B Z=F—=F=HA=+—HIF&

4.

&

Key Sources of Estimation
Uncertainty (Continued)

Estimated write down on properties under development for

sale and properties held for sale

Management regularly reviews the recoverability of the
Group’s properties under development for sale and properties
held for sale with reference to the current market environment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount of the assets exceeds its recoverable amount.
Appropriate write down for properties under development
and properties held for sale is made if the net realizable
value is lower than its carrying amount. As at 31 March
2013, the aggregate carrying amount of properties under
development and properties held for sale was approximately
HK$2,395,316,000 (2012: HK$1,941,646,000).

Estimated impairment of deposits for acquisition of interest in

a jointly controlled entity and acquisition of subsidiaries

Determining whether deposits for acquisition of interest in
a jointly controlled entity and acquisition of subsidiaries are
impaired requires an estimation of the recoverability of the
deposits. The Group takes into consideration the likelihood
of recovery, specific allowance is only made for the deposits
that are unlikely to be collected. Management reviews the
recoverability of the deposits regularly. As at 31 March 2013
and 2012, the carrying amount of deposits for acquisition
of interest in a jointly controlled entity and acquisition of
subsidiaries were HK$350,000,000 and HK$250,000,000,

respectively.

4.
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Capital Risk Management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximizing the return to shareholders through the
optimization of the debt and equity balance. The Group's

overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of borrowings and
equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising

issued share capital, accumulated losses and various reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on
a regular basis. As part of this review, the directors consider
the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital. Based on recommendations of the directors, the Group
will balance its overall capital structure through the payment
of dividends, new share issues, new borrowings raised and
repayment of borrowings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRE

For the year ended 31 March 2013 B Z=F—=F=HA=+—HIF&

6. Financial Instruments

6a. Categories of financial instruments

6. IETHE

6a. BT AR

2013 2012
—E—=F —ET-_F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH T FABT
Financial assets MKEE
Fair value through profit or loss R FESERILETA B a
— Investments held for trading —REEBEKRE 42,765 6,932
Available-for-sale financial assets A2 &R B E 102,053 197,185
Loans and receivables B R EK S E
— Trade and other receivables — B R EMEKRIAE 26,642 13,996
— Short-term loans receivable —EWEEE R 4,416 5,000
— Loans to associates — KB THENTER 87,838 87,831
— Bank balances and cash —IRITER MRS 496,651 818,441
615,547 925,268
Total et 760,365 1,129,385
Financial liabilities at REBERAVRCHKER
amortized cost
Trade and other payables B 5 Rk E AR FRIA 249,799 225,164
Amount due to an associate FE A — R B & A R FRIE 1,437 1,437
Borrowings &= 866,728 215,936
1,117,964 442,537

)
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6. Financial Instruments (Continued)

6b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments are set out in
note 6(a) above and details of these financial instruments
are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments and the policies on
how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.

(i) Credit risk

As at 31 March 2013, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial
loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties and the financial
guarantees provided by the Group is arising from:

o the carrying amount of the respective
recognized financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position;

and

o the amount of contingent liabilities in relation
to financial guarantee issued by the Group as

disclosed in note 42.

Annual Report 2012/2013 F 3§

6.

M THE (&

6b.

MR ERE B FRBR

AEBZ2FEHBHEITAHIN
EXHizE6(a) ZEM BT A
BT ST 5E o T30 E 7R
ZEVBITABRRAR KRR
BZzERkcBEX BEEEEE
WEERZ RS - DAREIR R B AN
B REUEE 2 FE e

() 1FEEE

R_E—=F=A=+—
B AEERSFTRE
BITEERAEEIRHENH
BRERMI BT HIERZ
RAEERRES :

s KRAPBARRKIHE
BEHEEBRMBEE
ZEEHEE: &

o MFR2ABEEEEAR
e S
ZHRARBERRE-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2013 B Z=F—=F=HA=+—HIF&

6. Financial Instruments (Continued)

6b.

Z

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

()

Credit risk (Continued)

In order to minimize the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a team
responsible for determination of credit limits, credit
approvals and other monitoring procedures to
ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual debt at the
end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group's credit risk is

significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks and with good reputation.

In addition, the credit risk on corporate guarantee
given to banks in respect of bank loans granted
to the Group's associate is limited because the
management will regularly review their financial
performance and reconsider the continuance of the

given guarantee regularly.
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6. Financial Instruments (Continued) 6. MB IR (&

6b. Financial risk management objectives and policies 6b. MEEREIREBFEREE

(Continued) (#&)

(i) Credit risk (Continued) () EEEE (#&)
Included in loans to associates is a loan to an ‘E/\\\ - 2-=%=A
associate, China Enterprises Limited (“CEL"), =+t—H HBTHEA
amounting to HK$87,173,000 as at 31 March 2013 AERBELS THE
(2012: HK$87,170,000), which expose the Group ‘A A]China Enterprises
to concentration of credit risk on the counterparty. Limited ([CEL]) 2 B
The Group assesses the credit risk of the loans by 87,173,000 Tt (=&
reviewing and monitoring the financial performance — — 4% :87,170,000/8
of CEL. Since value in use of CEL is greater than ) ARG EEERE &Y
its carrying value, the management considers the FhHZzEFEERR K
default risk on the receivables is not significant. EEE B R EECEL
Other than that, the Group has no other significant ZHBRE FHERZ
concentration of credit risk. =ERR EEIE/\‘CELZTEFH

BESRERBE HE
BRAER uﬂﬁllﬁlﬁé?uﬁlm/

Z BB TAEKR R 2

Hh AEBE W E|EME KR

mq:' ;i)f "“°

(i) Market risk (i) G E
(i) Interest rate risk (i) FIEEE
The Group is exposed to cash flow interest AEBEH2BE®R
rate risk primarily relate to variable-rate short- ENXRAREZEBER
term loans receivable, loans to associates, ﬁ%lj &AM FE30 -
bank balances, variable-rate borrowings as set ‘32&34ZF§\”§7\?
out in notes 30, 31, 32 and 34 respectively. B ?_LHHT 4 TR

ERAENR ﬁﬁﬁ,%
BRIF BB
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRE

For the year ended 31 March 2013 B Z=F—=F=HA=+—HIF&

6. Financial Instruments (Continued)

6b.

<

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(i1)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

The Group maintains variable rate borrowings.
The Group currently does not have an interest
rate hedging policy. However, management
monitor interest rate change exposure and
will consider hedging significant interest rate

exposure should the need arise.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is
mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of
Hong Kong Inter-Bank Offer Rate, the prime
lending rate arising from the Group's Hong
Kong dollar denominated borrowings and
People’s Bank of China benchmark lending
rate arising from the Group’'s RMB dominated

borrowings.
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6. Financial Instruments (Continued)

6b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(ir)

Market risk (Continued)

()

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

Regarding the cash flow interest rate risk,
the sensitivity analysis below have been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for non-derivative instruments at the
end of the reporting period. For variable-rate
short-term loans receivable and variable-rate
borrowings, the analysis is prepared assuming
the amount of the relevant asset and liability
outstanding at the end of the reporting period
was outstanding for the whole year. A 50
basis point increase or decrease represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points
(2012: 50 basis points) higher/lower and
all other variables were held constant, the
Group's post-tax loss for the year ended
31 March 2013 would increase/decrease by
HK$3,601,000 (2012: decrease/increase by
HK$881,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRE

For the year ended 31 March 2013 B Z=F—=F=HA=+—HIF&

6. Financial Instruments (Continued) 6.

6b. Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(i) Market risk (Continued)

(i) Price risk on listed securities under
available-for-sale investments and

investments held for trading

The Group is primarily exposed to equity
price risk through its investments in listed
equity securities included in available-for-sale
investments and investments held for trading.
The management manages this exposure by
maintaining a portfolio of investments with
different risks. The Group’s equity price risk
is mainly concentrated on equity instruments
quoted in the Stock Exchange.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to equity
price risks of listed securities included in
available-for-sale investments and investments

held for trading at the reporting date.
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6. Financial Instruments (Continued) 6. MB IR (&

6b. Financial risk management objectives and policies 6b. BIFSRE R E IR B IR RBUR
(Continued) (#&)
(i) Market risk (Continued) () mHEEE (&)

(i) Price risk on listed securities under (i) AIEHEERERIFIE
available-for-sale investments and BEERENZ FTFE
investments held for trading (Continued) SFIEEE R ()
Sensitivity analysis (Continued) BRRE DN (&)

If the share prices of the respective equity mMEBAREKRE 2

investments had been 20% (2012: 20%) % 8 FF T k&

higher/lower and all other variables were held 20% (=& ——%:

constant, the Group's: 20% ) - M AT A H b
BYRRTE K&
&z :

e post-tax loss for the year would e AXREFEKRBEZ
decrease/increase by HK$7,142,000 B 18 A5 E e
(2012: HK$1,158,000) as a result of the BEEREZAR
changes in fair value of investments held FTEZFHM
for trading; and o o

7,142,000/ JT
(ZE—Z%F:
1,158,000/%
L) &

e investment revaluation reserve would e RKREHMGHRE
increase/decrease by HK$7,906,000 15 & 7] 8 &
(2012: HK$8,165,000) for the Group as KEZRTFE
a result of the changes in fair value of B &) m i,
available-for-sale investments. & 47,906,000

BT (ZT—=
% :8,165,000
EIT) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2013 & Z =&

6. Financial Instruments (Continued)

6b.

)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(1)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the
Group monitors and maintains a level of cash
and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilization of
the borrowings and ensures compliance with loan
covenants.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on
the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group can
be required to pay. Specifically, bank loans with a
repayment on demand clause are included in the
earliest time band regardless of the probability of
the banks choosing to exercise their rights. The
maturity dates for other non-derivative financial
liabilities are based on the agreed repayment dates.
The table includes both interest and principal cash
flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating
rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from
interest rate at the end of reporting period.
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6. Financial Instruments (Continued)

6b.

M THE (&

Financial risk management objectives and policies 6b. MEEREIREBFEREE
(Continued) (&
(iii)  Liquidity risk (Continued) (i) TEEZ R (E
Liquidity tables BB &
Contractual Less than
weighted 3 months 3 months Total Carrying
average or to 1-5 Over undiscounted  amount at
interest rate  on demand 1 year years Syears  cash flows 31.3.2013
R-B-=§
ANME  SR=EA Az AERES ZA=1-A
FHHE  HRERK - -Z1f BBRALE REAE ZEEE
% HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TR TERT TR TiER TiER
2013 —E-Zf%
Non-derivative financial liabilities #{T4£H¥&E
Trade and other payables g REMERFHE
— Non-interest bearing —FEtE - 249,799 - - - 249,799 249,799
Amount due to an associate e —FBERAHE - 1,437 - - - 1,437 1,437
Borrowings it 173 125,352 58,550 717,200 121,167 1,022,269 866,728
Financial guarantee contracts BHERAH - 42,223 - - - 42,223 -
418,811 58,550 717,200 121,167 1,315,728 1,117,964
Contractual Less than
weighted 3 months 3 months Total Carrying
average or to 1-5 Over undiscounted amount at
interestrate on demand 1 year years 5 years cash flows 31.3.2012
R-E-——%
atmE  SR=EA =fAZ AERRE =ZA=t-A
THNME  FRERH - —Z0% BRLE nEEE ZREE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THEL TER FHEL TR FHEL
2012 —E--f%
Non-derivative financial liabilities F{748%&E
Trade and other payables B REMERFHE
~ Non-interest bearing —FGtE - 225,164 - - - 225,164 225,164
Amount due to an associate B —RBE A RE - 1437 - - - 1,437 1,437
Borrowings 3 463 217,184 S = S 217,184 215,936
Financial guarantee contracts HBEREH - 38,509 - - - 38,509 -
482,294 - - - 482,294 442,537
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2013 B Z=F—=F=HA=+—HIF&

6. Financial Instruments (Continued)

6b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(iif)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause
are included in the “less than 3 months or on
demand” time band in the above maturity analysis.
As at 31 March 2013 and 31 March 2012, the
carrying amounts of these bank loans amounted to
HK$36,235,000 and HK$30,040,000 respectively.
Taking into account the Group's financial position,
the directors do not believe that it is probable that
the banks will exercise their discretionary rights
to demand immediate repayment. The directors
believe that such bank loans will be repaid within
3 months of amount HK$1,491,000 (2012:
HK$414,000), after 3 months but within 1 year
of amount HK$4,534,000 (2012: HK$1,243,000),
after 1 year but within 5 years of amount
HK$12,026,000 (2012: HK$7,091,000) and after 5
years of HK$24,187,000 (2012: HK$21,465,000)
after the reporting date in accordance with the
scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan
agreements.

The undiscounted cash flows on financial guarantee
contracts have been categorized into time bands
based on the earliest date the bank borrowings
obtained by an associate are due for repayment in
accordance with loan repayment schedule agreed
with respective lenders.
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6. Financial Instruments (Continued)

6b.

6c.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(i)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The amounts included above for financial guarantee
contracts are the maximum amounts the Group
could be required to settle under the arrangement
for the full guaranteed amount if that amount
is claimed by the counterparty to the guarantee.
Based on expectations at the end of the reporting
period, the Group considers that it is more likely
than not that no amount will be payable under
the arrangement. However, this estimate is subject
to change depending on the probability of the
counterparty claiming under the guarantee which
is a function of the likelihood that the financial
receivables held by the counterparty which are
guaranteed suffer credit losses.

The amounts included above for variable interest
rate instruments for non-derivative financial
liabilities is subject to change if changes in variable
interest rates differ to those estimates of interest
rates determined at the end of the reporting period.

Fair value

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities

are determined as follows:

the fair value of financial assets with standard terms
and conditions and traded on active liquid markets
are determined with reference to quoted market bid
prices; and
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2013 B Z=F—=F=HA=+—HIF&

6. Financial Instruments (Continued)

6c.

Fair value (Continued)

o the fair value of other financial assets and
financial liabilities are determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flow analysis.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at
amortized cost in the consolidated financial statements

approximate their fair values.

Fair value measurements recognized in the consolidated

statement of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to
3 based on the degree to which the fair value is
observable.

. Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived
from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for
identical assets or liabilities.

o Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived
from inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly
(i.e. derived from prices).
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6. Financial Instruments (Continued)

6c.

6. MIETH (&

Fair value (Continued) 6c. RNY¥E(E)

Fair value measurements recognized in the consolidated Rir & B ik R & R I F

statement of financial position (Continued) EitE (&)

e Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived E=MAFEFTETIAE
from valuation techniques that include inputs REt AW IERIB AT R T
for the asset or liability that are not based on LBECEEXRBEZEH
observable market data (unobservable inputs). ASE (BEEHTG A

B) 2 EEAESEE
2013
—E-=F
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£-8 FZHR FEZR “E
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER TER TR THER
Financial assets BBEE
Fair value through profit or loss B FESEWEA B
— Investments held for trading -REEERE 42,765 - - 42,765
Available-for-sale financial assets AR ENBEEE 39,528 - - 39,528
Total kS 82,293 - - 82,293
2012
—E——F
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
i E-H F=R ek
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT T FHT TET
Financial assets MEEE
Fair value through profit or loss R FESEGA R
— Investments held for trading ~-FEEERE 6,932 = - 6,932

Available-for-sale financial assets JREENBEE 40,824 = = 40,824

Total kS 47,756 - - 47,756

There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 in the RAFE  F—REF KM

current year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRE

For the year ended 31 March 2013 B Z=F—=F=HA=+—HIF&

=9 P
7. Gross Proceeds 7. FRiGFIRA
Gross proceeds comprise gross proceeds from sales of FriS IR B RBIHEMEREHE
properties and investments held for trading, proceeds for sand BEERE RUYEBKRAERIERREH
mining operations and provision of water supply. An analysis of KBRS < FT1S sRIBBREAEK - A&
the Group’s gross proceeds for the year is as follows: B AFEMEHRIBEEINAT
2013 2012
—E—= —E——F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Continuing operations HEREER
Sales of properties held for sale HEREHEWE 160,000 55,350
Sales proceeds on trading of securities BHEECHEEMSNIEA - 10,812
Water supply oK 20,620 22,779
180,620 88,941
Discontinued operation BRI EK
Proceeds for sand mining operations W7 2 FT 1S 338 - 7,003
180,620 95,944
8. Segment Information 8. ZHEEH

Information reported to the chief operating decision maker

(i.e. the executive directors) for the purposes of resource

allocation and assessment of segment performance focuses on

the types of goods or services provided.
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Segment Information (Continued)

Segment revenue and results

The Group's reportable and operating segment are as follows:

Trading of securities - Trading of investments held
for trading

Property development  — Development and sale of

and trading properties

Water supply - Provision of water supply

An operating segment regarding the sand mining was
discontinued in the year ended 31 March 2012. The segment
information reported below does not include any amount for
this discontinued operation, which are described in more detail
in note 12.

Annual Report 2012/2013 F 3§

TREN (&
S ONES
AEEZALBREEHEMT -

E#EE - EBEERFEERE

MEBRRKR — DEBRRHEE

oo ==

B 5

oK — R EOKRSS

ERRDZEEPEREE-_T—=
FZAZT - ALFERILEB-T
NERZHBERNITBEZERLE
REEBZIMNSE(EESHBIEIR
BEEE12) o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MBEEmRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2013 B Z=F—=F=HA=+—HIF&

8. Segment Information (Continued) 8. ZEEMN (&

DRBAREE (&)

Segment revenue and results (Continued)

WA 2HMBEDRE D ZARER
BRERERBZIWAREE ZOM

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results

from continuing operations by reportable and operating

segment. LI
Property
Trading of development Water
securities and trading supply Consolidated
NERR
EHEE REE fitk =RE
HK$"000 HK$"000 HK$"000 HK$"000
TR TERr TER TER
For the year ended 31 March 2013 BE-Z-=f%
ZA=t-HLEE
Continuing operations HELEEF
GROSS PROCEEDS FERRAR - 160,000 20,620 180,620
REVENUE A
Segment revenue AEHBA - 160,000 20,620 180,620
SEGMENT (LOSS) PROFIT 28 (BE) & (32,240) (20,030) 3,928 (48,342)
Interest income FEHRA 455
Unallocated corporate income ROBEERA 3,202
Unallocated corporate expenses AOEEETH (54,872)
Finance costs (note) MEER (H1it) (8,842)
Impairment loss on goodwill (note) HEZREEE (H#) (714)
Impairment loss on property, plant and mE BEREEL
equipment (note) BEEE (Fit) (4,122)
Impairment loss on prepaid lease payments BRAEFHKZAERE
(note) (#1:#) (459)
Impairment loss on intangible assets (note) BYEELREEE (M) (2,141)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AHEEHERE 2 REERE
investments (18,000)
Loss on deemed disposal of partial RELHE—RHBEAR
interest in an associate BinEs 2 BB (655)
Share of results of associates NG E S 3,690
Loss before income tax BRATEHAIEE (130,800)
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8. Segment Information (Continued)

Segment revenue and results (Continued)

8. DEEH (&)

DRBARER (&)

Property
Trading of ~ development Water
securities  and trading supply  Consolidated
MELE
EHEE REE K e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THT THET AT
For the year ended 31 March 2012 BE-2-=f
ZA=t-HIL%E
Continuing operations KECEXK
GROSS PROCEEDS FERRAR 10,812 55,350 22,779 88,941
REVENUE KA
Segment revenue SEKA - 55,350 22,779 78,129
SEGMENT (LOSS) PROFIT 28 (BR) &7 (1,641) (63,974) 4,935 (60,680)
Interest income il A 9,890
Unallocated corporate income ROBEERA 2,641
Unallocated corporate expenses ROBEEXH (50,901)
Finance costs (note) HBBR (i) (22,445)
Gain on replacement of convertible notes ERTRRER 2 E 1,468
Gain on disposal of convertible note HEMBEZIE 7 W 13,451
Impairment loss on goodwill (note) HEZREEBE (§iZ) (6,155)
Impairment loss on amounts due from B —REE ARFRIE 2
an associate REBE (1,255)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AHREERE  REEE
investments (15,928)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RMBAR Y& 1,309
Share of results of associates YN (112,846)
Loss before income tax BRI TR B (241,451)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRE

For the year ended 31 March 2013 B Z=F—=F=HA=+—HIF&

8. Segment Information (Continued) 8.

Segment revenue and results (Continued)

Note: The Group allocated the goodwill, property, plant and

equipment, prepaid lease payments, intangible assets and

certain borrowings to the segment assets and liabilities without

allocating the impairment loss on goodwill, property, plant

and equipment, prepaid lease payments, intangible assets and

finance costs to segment result as the chief operating decision

maker did not take into account of the impairment of such

assets and finance costs in the measurement of segment result.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the

same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note 3.

Segment profit (loss) represents profit (loss) incurred by each

segment without allocation of interest income, unallocated

corporate income, unallocated corporate expenses, finance

costs, impairment loss on goodwill, impairment loss on

property, plant and equipment, impairment loss on prepaid

lease payments, impairment loss on intangible assets, gain

on replacement and disposal of convertible note, impairment

loss on amounts due from an associate, impairment loss on

available-for-sale investments, gain on disposal of a subsidiary,

loss on deemed disposal of partial interest in an associate and

share of results of associates. This is the measure reported to

the chief operating decision maker (i.e. executive directors) for

the purpose of resource allocation and assessment of segment

performance.
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8. Segment Information (Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities

Trading of development

8. DEEFR (&)
DEAEREM

Property
Water

securities and trading supply Consolidated
MERR
EHEE REE itk )
HK$"000 HK$"000 HK$"000 HK$"000
TET THERT TET TET
At 31 March 2013 RZFE—=#=f=1—-H
ASSETS BE
Segment assets NERE 54,351 3,046,044 140,727 3,241,122
Interests in associates NG 222,806
Available-for-sale investments AEHERE 102,053
Loans to associates BTHEARER 87,838
Deposit for acquisition of interest in WikE —AARZH B
a jointly controlled entity BaEi® 350,000
Deposit for acquisition of subsidiaries WERBAR TS 250,000
Bank balances and cash RITEBRER 2 445,628
Short-term loans receivable B B E K 4,416
Other unallocated assets Hi KD EE 43,691
Consolidated assets BEBE 4,747,554
LIABILITIES &f
Segment liabilities PEAR 46,983 1,132,506 4,956 1,184,445
Borrowings fE 117,664
Deferred tax liabilities EEHBEEE 11,036
Other unallocated liabilities H AP EAE 39,154
Consolidated liabilities GAEBE 1,352,299
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MBEEmRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2013 B Z=F—=F=HA=+—HIF&

8. Segment Information (Continued) 8. ZEEMN (&

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) DEEERBE(£)
Property
Trading of  development Water
securities  and trading supply  Consolidated
MELR
HHFEE REE 7K 7a

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TEL TRT TAT

At 31 March 2012 RZFE——#=H=1—-H
ASSETS 8E
Segment assets PEEE 24,097 1,999,046 150,872 2,174,015
Interests in associates NGl e 232,582
Available-for-sale investments At HERE 197,185
Loans to associates BTHENAER 87,831
Deposit for acquisition of interest in WikE—AARZH B

a jointly controlled entity BaRzi® 350,000
Deposit for acquisition of subsidiaries WERBAR TS 250,000
Bank balances and cash RITEBRER 784,279
Short-term loans receivable JE W 5 B E TR 5,000
Other unallocated assets Hi KD EE 17,710
Consolidated assets GEEE 4,098,602
LIABILITIES &f
Segment liabilities AEAR 46,508 373,361 4,532 424,401
Borrowings T 215,936
Deferred tax liabilities EEHBEEE 11,866
Other unallocated liabilities HEAHEREE 39,584
Consolidated liabilities GREE 691,787
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Segment Information (Continued) 8. ZRBERF (&)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) DEEENRBE(Z)

MEESBRAMR D BRI EER

allocating resources between segments: ms:

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and

o assets are allocated to reportable and operating
segments other than certain property, plant and
equipment, interests in associates, available-for-sale
investments, loans to associates, deposit for acquisition
of interest in a jointly controlled entity, deposit for
acquisition of subsidiaries, short-term loans receivable,
club debentures, deferred tax assets, certain other
receivables and prepayments, certain bank balances and
cash and tax recoverable; and

BRE TR HRRE e
NEfEL AT HIEERE BT
BEQmER  WE—HEARE
HERES S KBHBELQ
ARl & BYEHER &/
BH BEERBAEE & T HAM
FENGRIB M SR RIR - /T ERTT
BER NI A K AT UL E AR IR S
BEEONEEAZ2HBMEED

N o

Bk
e liabilities are allocated to reportable and operating o [RARDBCHEAM BN RIERES

B BN —MHEERTNIEAE
ETER TBRRERER &
convertible loan notes, tax payable and deferred tax NBBEREEFBEEN BFE
liabilities. ENEEAE2HRMEED R

segments other than unallocated other payables and
accruals, amount due to an associate, certain borrowings,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MBEEmRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2013 B Z=F—=F=HA=+—HIF&

8. Segment Information (Continued) 8. ZEEMN (&

Other segment information HibnBER
Property
Trading of development Water
securities  and trading supply Unallocated Consolidated
MERRE
EHEE REE ok ROE &R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx TEx TET T TR
Continuing operations RELERE
For the year ended 31 March 2013 FoF—=F
ZHA=1—HIFE
Amounts included in the measure of st ESIERF (BE) RO BEEE
segment profit (loss) and FitEz e 8
segment assets
Additions to property, REME BEREE
plant and equipment - 805 426 13,153 14,384
Release of prepaid lease payments BREERFER - - 611 - 611
Amortization of intangible assets B AESY - - 2,613 - 2,613
Written-off property, MeEmE BERR
plant and equipment - 657 - - 657
Loss on fair value changes on REEBEREZ D TEEDER
investments held for trading 32,444 - - - 32,444
Depreciation e - 1,728 5,328 4,742 11,798
Dividend income R EHA 204 - - - 204
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Segment Information (Continued)

8. wa) i/\ié*’l’ (11'5

Other segment information (Continued) HihnfaER (£)
Property
Trading of  development Water
securities  and trading supply  Unallocated  Consolidated
MEER
EFHEE REE fHoK A e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT FHT FHT THT
Continuing operations RERERE
For the year ended 31 March 2012 HEZ_F——F
ZA=F—HIFE
Amounts included in the measure FEARRT (BR) RO REE
of segment profit (loss) and itz &8
segment assets
Additions to property, REME HBERK
plant and equipment - 5177 - 10,309 15,486
Release of prepaid lease payments BREERFER - - 603 - 603
Amortization of intangible assets B AERY - - 2,613 - 2,613
Written-off property, MeEmE BERR
plant and equipment - - - 135 135
Loss on fair value changes on RIEEBREATEZHER
investments held for trading 2,023 - - - 2,023
Penalty on deferred payment of EXTH(E 2 S
land premiums - 28,157 - - 28,157
Impairment loss on properties FEHENME 2 HERBR
held for sale - 15,448 - - 15,448
Depreciation ne = 1,440 5,220 1,804 8,464
Dividend income BREBA 281 - - = 281
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRE

For the year ended 31 March 2013 B Z=F—=F=HA=+—HIF&

8. Segment Information (Continued) 8.

Geographical Information

The Group's revenue from external customers based on the

location of the property for property development and trading

segment and the location of customers for other segments

and information about its non-current assets by geographical

location of the assets are detailed below:

Wil iﬁ é *’I’ (/ME
i 35 & K

ROEERNEEDBRRYEMEL

Nt E A D BRI E P A 8] 55 A&
EREIIFEF ZWA - ARIRE E
FREth Bl < IEM BN B E B R a0
T

Revenue from external

customers Non-current assets
REMFEF ZWA FRBEE
2013 2012 2013 2012
“E-=f —F-—F CZB-=f —T——F
HK$"000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
THER TAEL THER FTAEL
Hong Kong N 160,000 55,350 601,317 603,450
The People’s Republic of China (“PRC")  H#EARKME ([FE]) 20,620 22,779 349,182 2,074,375
180,620 78,129 950,499 2,677,825
Note: Non-current assets excluded available-for-sale investments and Kt ERBEETEFEIHEEKRE
deferred tax assets. MBEFIBE EE ©
Information about major customers ERETERFZER
For the year ended 31 March 2013, there was one customer REBEZT—=F=A=+—HLF

(2012: two customers) who are independent third parties
to the Group and accounted for over 10% of total revenue
with revenue of HK$160,000,000 (2012: HK$55,350,000
and HK$15,755,000 respectively) related to the property
development and trading segment (2012: property
development and trading segment and water supply segment
respectively).

ER %%?ff@&f’f%"*ﬁ(—ﬁf:
F:oRAMEERRE S DERM
KOBE)— R (ZE—ZF -WMB)B
REBEBIE=F2BPIEREAS
10% ' B B4 A £160,000,0007% JT
(ZZF— % : 9 555,350,000/ T
%15,755,000% 7T ) °
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Other Income

Hidg A

2013 2012
—E-=F —E—_F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FHET
Continuing operations BEREER
Interest income on TEEE 2 ERKA
— Interest on bank deposits —RITFERFIE 285 2,049
— Imputed interest on convertible notes — FE IR AT A R R IR
receivable HEFE - 7,427
— Interest on short-term loans — IR HAE KA B
receivable 170 414
455 9,890
Rental income e A - 1,287
Management fee income ERERA 1,050 100
Dividend income & 8 WA 204 281
Others Hth 2,152 2,351
3,861 13,909

Annual Report 2012/2013 F 3R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRE

For the year ended 31 March 2013 B Z=F—=F=HA=+—HIF&

10.0ther Gains and Losses, Other 10. Hftlim KA 1E - HApx
Expenses
2013 2012
—E—-=F —ET——fF
HK$'000 HK$’000
THER FHET
Continuing operations HEREXER
Other gains and losses Bt a REHE
Loss on deemed disposal of RAEL & —HBE QR 5
partial interest in an associate s 2 E1E (655) -
Written-off of property, WSE I - e ES R
plant and equipment (657) (135)
Gain (loss) on disposal of property, HEME HERZHEZ
plant and equipment Iz (E518) 173 (1)
Gain on replacement of convertible note B A[ A% Z i 7 W
(note 24) (B1ez24) - 1,468
Gain on disposal of convertible note & TR B 1R 2 W e
(note 24) (Bet24) - 13,451
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (note 40) & —REH B R &)z Wk
(#at40) - 1,309
Others Hit (1,443) (1,531)
(2,582) 14,561
Other expenses Htfgss
Impairment loss on goodwill (note 27) BB REERE (MF21) (714) (6,155)
Impairment of other receivables (note 28) H fth lE UL FKIB 2 BB
(H1et28) (6,435) -
Impairment loss on property, LR Y
plant and equipment (note 18) WIEEE (H218) (4,122) =
Impairment loss on intangible assets mAE 2 REERE
(note 20) (#izt20) (2,141) =
Impairment loss on prepaid lease TENMEE N ZREEE
payments (note 19) (Biat19) (459) =
Impairment loss on properties held for FEHE Y % 2 REEE
sale (note 26) (#1zt26) - (15,448)
Impairment loss of available-for-sale AIHIHERE 2 REEE
investments (note 23) (B1et23) (18,000) (15,928)
Impairment loss on amount due from FE U — s = A R RIE 2
an associate VEREN SR - (1,255)
Penalty on deferred payment of land IR (B 2 &K
premiums (note 33) (H75%33) - (28,157)
(31,871) (66,943)
(34,453) (52,382)
Discontinued operation ERIEREER
Other gains and losses Bt o REE
Others Hh, - 27
- 27
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11

12.

.Finance Costs 1. MBEH
2013 2012
—E-=F —E—_F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHET
Continuing operations BEREER
Interest on bank and other borrowings RIT R EABIE R 2 FE
— wholly repayable within five years —HARAFRBHEER 7,067 10,128
— repayable over five years —BRTFREER 20,772 =
Interest on other payables H A JE T SR 2 F B - 7,890
Imputed interest on convertible ARBRERZER2HERNE
loan notes - 4,427
Total bank and other borrowing costs BRIT R B b {8 SR AN R R 27,839 22,445
Less: amounts capitalized in properties B RNFEERPYES
under development for sale =N | e ot (18,997) =
8,842 22,445

Borrowing cost capitalized during the year arose from specific

borrowing.

Discontinued Operation

12.

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the Group entered

into an agreement to dispose of its 100% equity interest

in Shine Brilliant Limited and Widecheer Limited (“Disposal

Group”), which carried out all of the Group’'s sand mining

operations, at a consideration of HK$25,000,000. The disposal

was completed on 30 September 2011,

on which the Group

lost control over the Disposal Group. Thereafter the Group

discontinued in the sand mining operations and presented as

discontinued operation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRE

For the year ended 31 March 2013 B Z=F—=F=HA=+—HIF&

12.Discontinued Operation

(Continued)

12.

The profit or loss from the discontinued operation for the year

ended 31 March 2012 was analyzed as follows:

El/ IS :?(éé = %ﬁ% (II‘E
REBZE_ZE——F=A=+—HI*F

EREERIEEEER 2 mFEE
DT ¢

2012
—E——4F
HK$'000
T
Profit of sand mining operations B %755 2 F Nig 5
for the year 2,582
Gain on disposal of sand mining SRR K 2 W (#7340)
operations (note 40) 27,560
30,142
The results of the sand mining operations for the year ended KOEXEBEREBEE_ZT—Z_F=A4
31 March 2012 were as follows: =+ HIUEFEZEENT:
2012
— B
HK$'000
T 7T
Revenue A 7,003
Cost of sales 55 AR (3,543)
Other gains and losses H bz & 518 27
Administrative expenses TR X (1,889)
Profit before income tax B AT 15 B0 B g A 1,598
Income tax credit FriHi &2 984
Profit for the year F A A 2,582
Profit for the year attributable to: AT AT B & s A -
Owners of the Company KARHEE A 2,497
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR B 85
2,582
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12.Discontinued Operation
(Continued)

The net assets of the Disposal Group at the date of disposal
were disclosed at note 40.

Cash flows from Disposal Group:

12 EIIII\\ :?Eg**%ﬁ% (/IE

HESENHERRAZ EEFENMH
FT401KR R

KEHESEEZRERE:

2012
—E——F
HK$'000
FAT

Net cash flows from operating activities — A& EKEL 2R E)

= 55 4,682
=55 (180)
=53 (4,503)

Net cash flows used in investing activities REEBHHAZEE)
Net cash flows used in financing activities BIEZEEEFHZIRE)
Net cash outflows REeMnEFHE

(1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRE

For the year ended 31 March 2013 #Z - ZF—=F=HA=+—HI FZ

13.Income Tax Expense (Credit)

13. FREHi<H (%)

2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT TR
Continuing operations BFEREER
The charge (credit) comprises: T (ER)BE:
Profits tax: F1EH
Hong Kong Profits Tax G
— Current year —REE 111 297
Overseas s
— Current year —REE 2,159 2,571
2,270 2,868
Deferred tax (note 37) EIETIA (HiE37) (830) (26,032)
1,440 (23,164)

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated

assessable profit for both years.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise
Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation
of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for
both years.

Income tax arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the

rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

WEFEE 2 BB ER O Gt ER
T M35 16.5%H & ©

BREREARKMBEEMETE
(TEXRAEHRIE]) REXEMBHIX
ZEED MESE T EHEQ
AR R25% °

EHEMRERRELEZMBHIRERH
AEREE BT ESE
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13.Income Tax Expense (Credit) 13. RSBt (&) (&)

(Continued)
The income tax expense (credit) for the year can be reconciled FAMGHXH (e s 2H
to the loss before income tax per the consolidated statement W R ARTSE A EE 2 S ERA
of comprehensive income as follows: N
2013 2012
—E—-=F —E—_fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT T
Loss before income tax: B BT 15 75 AT B 48 -
Continuing operations SH S (130,800) (241,451)
Discontinued operation B IE S T - 29,158
(130,800) (212,293)
Tax credit at applicable tax rate of 16.5% 1&5@E A R16.5%+t & 2
IR % (21,582) (35,028)
Tax effect of share of results of associates JEAGEE L D R34 2
MG E (609) 18,620
Tax effect of income not taxable BAEBFIUA 2 B 155 &
for tax purposes (436) (3,451)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible TENBREI BB E
for tax purposes 4,324 16,365
Tax effect of tax losses not recognized RERHBBE BB E 20,303 3,644
Deferred tax effect of disposal of HEREMFEZIRT
investment properties (Note) M e (Hit) - (25,201)
Effect of different tax rates of REM AR R L E 2 B
subsidiaries operating in RAZTRABE 22
other jurisdictions (560) 903
Income tax expense (credit) for the year ~ FRATEFH M (FE) 1,440 (24,148)
Income tax expense (credit) NTEEEEZAFE
for the year for: Frisdiz i (3 &E)
Continuing operations S IERR E 1,440 (23,164)
Discontinued operation BRI R - (984)
1,440 (24,148)
Note: There was reversal of deferred tax liabilities upon the disposal of Wit REBEEZZ—-—F=A=+—H

investment properties during the year ended 31 March 2012
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B HRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2013 #Z - ZF—=#F=HA=+—HI FZF

14.Loss for the Year 14. FREE

2013 2012
—E—-=F —E——F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET T
Loss for the year from continuing REFBKEEE ZFEN
operations has been arrived at BB TR (BT A)
after charging (crediting): T BIBEEDR:
Staff costs (including directors’ 8 T KA
emoluments): (BEEEM:)
Salaries and other benefits e kEMmEF 23,489 25,592
Retirement benefits scheme RIRFEFET &I
contributions 1,266 1,146
24,755 26,738
Amortization of intangible assets mEEHE
(included in administrative expenses) (Bt ATTERAS) 2,613 2,613
Cost of other inventories sold B & Bt FERA 12,491 13,119
Cost of properties sold B EMEKAR 157,626 51,291
Auditor’s remuneration Z BTN & 3,506 3,108
Depreciation of property, M MRERETE
plant and equipment 11,798 8,464
Impairment loss on amount due FEW — B R RIFRIBZ
from an associate VERIELSEE! - 1,255
Impairment loss on properties FREHEME 2 REEE
held for sale - 15,448
Release of prepaid lease payments ENEENKEE 611 603
Dividend income A% B A (204) (281)
Profit for the year from discontinued B AR I8 & ST F s
operation has been arrived at after TR AR (Bt A) T3l
charging (crediting): BIBEEN:
Amortization of intangible assets A
(included in administrative expenses) (BEFATEMAX) - 828
Cost of other inventories sold BEHEEMEFEERA - 3,543
Depreciation of property, plant and Mz MR RRETE
equipment - 3,543
Rental income e WA - (7,003)
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15.Directors’, Chief Executive’s and
Employees’ Remuneration

(a) Directors’ remuneration

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 5 (2012:

6) directors were as follows:

15. E5  THEBRESFH M

(@) ZEFHM

ENHENTSRER(ZF
——F:6R)FEZHMEMT:

2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT TAIT
Yap, Allan ERHE
Fees W - -
Other emoluments: H A< -
Salaries and other benefits Fe kEMER 2,400 2,400
Retirement benefits scheme RRAE FIET B3
contributions 15 12
2,415 2,412
Heung Pik Lun, Edmond A & fm
Fees we - =
Other emoluments: H it 5 :
Salaries and other benefits e kEAMmET 2,000 2,000
Retirement benefits scheme RIREFIET SR
contributions 15 12
2,015 2,012
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B EmRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2013 B Z=—F—=F=HA=+—HIFF

15.Directors’, Chief Executive’s
and Employees’ Remuneration
(Continued)

(a)

Directors’ remuneration (Continued)

15. EF  THA R K EE % b
(4&)

(a)

EEHM(E)

2013 2012
—E-=F —E—_F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT TABIT
Kwok Ka Lap, Alva v
Fees W 48 48
Other emoluments: H At B -
Salaries and other benefits e kHEMmEF - =
Retirement benefits scheme RIRAEFIET B3R
contributions - -
48 48
Sin Chi Fai i e
Fees we 63 63
Other emoluments: H A 5 :
Salaries and other benefits e kEMmEF - =
Retirement benefits scheme R FIET SR
contributions - -
63 63
Poon Kwok Hing, Albert 7 B R
Fees e 50 50
Other emoluments: Eif e :
Salaries and other benefits e kHEMmEF - =
Retirement benefits scheme RARAE FIET B3R
contributions - -
50 50
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15.Directors’, Chief Executive’s
and Employees’ Remuneration
(Continued)

(a)

Directors’ remuneration (Continued)

15. E5  THEBRESFH M

(%)

(@) EBE==HM (&)

2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT TAIT
Chan Kwok Chuen, Augustine BREE (R ——F
(retired on 24 August 2011) NAZ+THEBRE)
Fees we - 48
Other emoluments: HAn M5 :
Salaries and other benefits e kEMmET - =
Retirement benefits scheme RIREFIET SR
contributions - =
- 48
Total =)
Directors’ fees Ekn 161 209
Other emoluments: H A< -
Salaries and other benefits e kHEMmEF 4,400 4,400
Retirement benefits scheme RARAE FI T B
contributions 30 24
4,591 4,633

Dr. Yap Allan is also performing the role of the chief

executive of the Company with nil emolument for both

years and his emoluments disclosed above include those

of services rendered by him as the chief executive.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2013 B Z=—F—=F=HA=+—HIFF

15.Directors’, Chief Executive’s 15. B T B K 1R 8 %7 B
and Employees’ Remuneration (%)
(Continued)
(b) Employees’ remuneration (b) & & %o

The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals of
the Group included two directors for the year ended 31
March 2013 (2012: two directors), whose emoluments
are included in (a) above. The aggregate emoluments of
the remaining three individuals are as follows:

HE-_ZT—=FZA=+—H
HEE AEBRURSHFAL
BREMEBESE(ZE—Z—F:Mm
ZEZ) HEMEE 2R EX
(@ -E#p=—FBATZHESBHE
LUNNE

2013 2012

—E—= —E—_F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FH T T T

Salaries and other benefits e REHMmEF 4,464 4,718
Retirement benefit scheme RORAE BT S 5K

contributions 44 72

4,508 4,790

Number of employees

BEAH
2013 2012
—E-Z=F —T——F
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 £ % 1,500,000/ 7T 1 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001/ £ £2,000,00078 7T 2 2
3 3

No inducement paid or payable to directors to join or
upon joining the Group in both years and no directors
waived any emoluments in both years.
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16.Dividend 16. RE

2013 2012
—E—-=F == 4E
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT T
Dividends recognized as FABRRBDIRZRE
distribution during the year:
2012 final — HK2 cents —T-FREPKRE
(2012: 2011 final dividend — B2
HK2 cents) per share —E -
—ZT——FREARKRE
A2 22,426 22,426
The final dividend of HK2 cents (2012: HK2 cents) per share in EEREBREBE_ZT —Z=ZF=A4
respect of the year ended 31 March 2013 has been proposed =+ —BIEFEIRMNRAKRE & K2
by the directors and is subject to approval at the forthcoming B (ZZE—ZF: 8R2E) -1
annual general meeting. AEBRRREERRBFREG L4t
/E °
17.Loss Per Share 17. B REE
From continuing and discontinued operations REFERERIECEER
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share RAREEG ANEBIRBRER R EEE
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the IR N EUEETE .
following data:
2013 2012
—E-=F == AE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FHET
Loss for the year attributable to owners — T ESRER L E#EEE
of the Company for the purposes of P N/NCIE ¥ = DN )
basic and diluted loss per share FANEE (126,720) (189,994)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2013 B Z=—F—=F=HA=+—HIFF

17.Loss Per Share (Continued)

17. BIREE (&)

From continuing and discontinued operations (Continued) REFEROKRIECEER (&)
2013 2012
—E—-=F —E——F
‘000 ‘000
F & I B&
(Note)
(Krat)
Number of shares: A :
Weighted average number of ordinary SEESRERNREEEE
shares for the purposes of basic and TEAR NEEFHEE
diluted loss per share 1,121,306 1,091,006
Note: The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the HieE: SHEESREABEBEZ LTBRRIMNET

purpose of basic loss per share has been adjusted for the effect
of bonus element of the rights issue that took place on 13 April
2011.

No adjustment for convertible loan notes was made in
calculating diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31
March 2012 as the conversion of convertible loan notes would
result in decrease in loss per share.

Hanny Holdings Limited * $8 # £ EHRA 7
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17.Loss Per Share (Continued) 17. BREE (&)

From continuing operations REFELEER
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share RAREBEAREERERAREEEH
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the BRI TEIESE ¢

following data:

2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT F&TT
Loss for the year attributable to owners — FFESREAR R EEE 2
of the Company from continuing RAaEE ANEIEFE
operations for the purposes of basic B EEFAERE
and diluted loss per share (126,720) (220,051)
The denominators used in the calculation of the basic and HEANREAABGRBLCEREL
diluted loss per share attributable to owners of the Company 2 BREAREEEBEMAS & E
from continuing operations is the same as that for loss EREFERERIKEEB ZFNR
per share for the year from continuing and discontinued BREEMAEER-
operations.
From discontinued operation KEERIEREEE
For the year ended 31 March 2012, basic earnings per share RBZE-_ZT——F=A=+—H1t
from discontinued operation was HK$0.03 per share, based FE RBERBERIELEEL 2
on the profit for the year from discontinued operation of 30,057,000/ ;T & M A - & EatEt
HK$30,057,000 and the denominator detailed above for both EEREAARAREEEEAMA 2D 85t
basic and diluted loss per share. B REEREREEBZERER

B MR ER0.03ETT -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B EmRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2013 B Z=—F—=F=HA=+—HIFF

. o o o
18.Property, Plant and Equipment 18. ¥ % - MR R fE
Furniture, Sand
Plantand fixtures and Motor mining
Buildings machinery equipment vehicles Vessel vessels Total
#a-
BF  HERER  RERRE RE Mg RO a7
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT TAT TAT TAL TETL
Cost 7%
At 1 April 2011 RZE——E@A-A 88,777 9,064 4,184 4,803 - 190,154 296,982
Currency realignment HERE 2,798 330 5 38 - 5,369 8,540
Additions RE = = 13,263 2,223 - - 15,486
Disposals e - = (10) = = = (10
Written-off ki - - (885) - = - (885)
Disposal of subsidiaries HERE AR - (1,564) - - - (195,523) (197,087)
At 31 March 2012 RZF-Z%=f=1+-A 91,575 7,830 16,557 7,064 - - 123,026
Currency realignment HERE 949 9 67 12 - - 1,126
Additions NE = = 790 3,844 9,750 - 14,384
Disposals irk - - - (664) = = (664)
Written-off s = - (1,789) - = - (1,789)
At 31 March 2013 RZE-=%=f=1-A 92,524 7,928 15,625 10,256 9,750 - 136,083
DEPRECIATION AND FERAE
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 April 2011 RZE-——F0A-A 20,312 2,181 1,852 1,534 - 160,051 185,930
Currency realignment HERE 59 91 19 15 - 4,574 5,295
Provided for the year ENEE 4,354 753 2,121 1,310 - 3,469 12,007
Eliminated upon disposals HERH Y - - (4) _ _ _ @)
Eliminated upon written-off ~ #i$k i 85 - - (750) = = = (750)
Eliminated upon disposal of ~ HEMB Ak 1 #
subsidiaries - (340) - - - (168,094) (168,434)
At 31 March 2012 RZE-Z%=f=1+-H 25,262 2,685 3,238 2,859 - - 34,044
Currency realignment HERE 279 41 30 10 - - 360
Provided for the year ENEE 4,407 688 4,340 2,092 271 - 11,798
Eliminated upon disposals HEBHH = = = (317) = - (317)
Eliminated upon written-off ~ #i$H 4 $ - - (1132) - - = (1,132)
Impairment loss recognized ~ FRBRZAEFE
during the year (note) (H#) 4122 - - - - - 412
At 31 March 2013 RZZ-Zf=fA=1-H 34,070 3414 6,476 4,644 271 - 48 875
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 March 2013 R-2-=%=A=1-H 58,454 4,514 9,149 5,612 9,479 - 87,208
At 31 March 2012 RZE-Z%=f=1+-AH 66,313 5,145 13,319 4,205 - - 88,982

Note: The details of impairment loss recognized during the year as set

out in note 21.
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18.

19.

Property, Plant and Equipment
(Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on straight-line basis at the following rates per

annum.

Over the period of the leases
or2% - 5%

10% — 20%

10% — 33%

Buildings

Plant and machinery

Furniture, fixtures and
equipment

20% - 25%

6.7%

10%

Motor vehicles
Vessel

Sand mining vessels

The Group's buildings are situated on a land in PRC with

medium-term leases.
Prepaid Lease Payments

The Group’s prepaid lease payments comprise leasehold lands
in the PRC held under medium-term land use rights.

18.

19.

5= e RaRfE (&

EatyE  #ER RRERE TDIRER
ERATERFE-

BF BB FH

%2%—5%

1 25 T2 Mk 10% —20%

RE-KEBER 10%—33%
B

E 20% —25%

e 6.7%

M 10%

AEEZEFMRFE—EHHELG
Tie

RAAEENR

AEBZANEENRBRETER
BRI ERESEZCEEL -

2013 2012
—E—-=F —EFT——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FHET

Analyzed for reporting purposes as: BEWmE BT IEL DA -
Non-current asset FEmBEE 5,578 6,575
Current asset mENE B 619 612
6,197 7,187

Included in the carrying amount of non-current prepaid lease
payments as at 31 March 2013 is accumulated impairment loss
of HK$459,000 (2012: HK$nil), details set out in note 21.

Annual Report 2012/2013 F 3

NR-ZE—=FE=A=+—8 " 3Ei5
FENEENZKZERES BERR
EE518459,0008 0 (—E——F: &

BT FEE R W21 -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2013 #Z - ZF—=#F=HA=+—HI FZF

20.Intangible Assets

20. B EE

Operating
right to
Customer water supply
contracts business Total
ok FE K
EEEN sERER @ EE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TATT FA T FAIT
COST 5@
At 1 April 2011 R-_ZE——FMH—H 91,735 13,395 105,130
Disposal of subsidiaries o E KB A Al (60,263) = (60,263)
At 31 March 2012 and R-E——F=A=+—HK
31 March 2013 =W ==E= f == 31,472 13,395 44,867
AMORTIZATION e
At 1 April 2011 R-_ZE—FmMA—H 49,300 1,768 51,068
Disposal of subsidiaries el = RN (43,283) = (43,283)
Charge for the year F R 2,926 515 3,441
At 31 March 2012 RZE—=—F=HA=+—H 8,943 2,283 11,226
Impairment loss recognized & AR Z R E &8
in the year 1,410 731 2,141
Charge for the year F RNk 2,098 515 2,613
At 31 March 2013 RZZE—=F=A=+—H 12,451 3,529 15,980
CARRYING VALUE BREE
At 31 March 2013 R-E—=F=-A=+—H 19,021 9,866 28,887
At 31 March 2012 RZE—=—F=RA=+—H 22,529 11,112 33,641

Hanny Holdings Limited « $3 B 5@ HRA A



20.Intangible Assets (Continued)

The above intangible assets were purchased as part of the
acquisition of Regrowth Resources Limited (water supply
business) and BExm B &EMEZ S HE R AR (sand mining
business) during the year ended 31 March 2008.

During the year ended 31 March 2012, intangible asset of
HK$16,980,000 in relation to the customer contract arising on
acquisition of sand mining business was derecognized upon
disposal of sand mining operations as set out in notes 12 and
40.

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Group recognized
an impairment loss of HK$2,141,000 (2012: HK$nil) in relation
to the customer contracts and operating right included
in intangible assets arising on acquisition of water supply
business. Details of impairment testing on intangible assets
was set out in note 21.

The above intangible assets have finite lives and are amortized
on a straight-line basis over the following periods:

Customers contracts 10 — 15 years
Operating right to water supply business 26 years
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tREEEEIRBE_TT\F=
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MEBRABRAR (FKER) MR
EMESEMEZERAF (RPE
)2 —#BD e

REBE-_T——_F=A=+—HIF
EA RUEBRVEKDESZREES
#5 K 2 B A E 16,980,000 T2
A SRR RS R A TR - BEIE R
M FE12 540 ©

REBEE-T—=F=A=+—HLHF
BN ANEBERBBHRKEBHE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B EmRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2013 B Z=—F—=F=HA=+—HIFF

21.Goodwill 21. @&
HK$'000
T
COST A
At 1 April 2011 RZFE——FMA—H 33,145
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHE QA (20,279)
At 31 March 2012 and 31 March 2013 RZE——F=ZA=+—HEK
—ET-=F=A=+—H 12,866
IMPAIRMENT LOSS BEEE
At 1 April 2011 RZZE——FMmMA—H 26,276
Impairment loss recognized in the year FARRZREBE 6,155
Disposal of subsidiaries HEK B AR A (20,279)
At 31 March 2012 R—BE——F=A=+—H 12,152
Impairment loss recognized in the year FARRBE/BE 714
At 31 March 2013 R_E-—=Ff=HA=+—H 12,866
CARRYING AMOUNTS REE
At 31 March 2013 R-_E—=F=A=+—H -
At 31 March 2012 R-_E——F=A=+—H 714

Hanny Holdings Limited * $8 # £ EHRA 7



21.Goodwill (Continued)

Particulars regarding impairment testing on goodwill,
intangible assets with finite useful lives, property, plant and
equipment with finite useful lives and prepaid lease payment
with finite useful lives are set out below:

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill have been
allocated to the individual cash generating unit (CGU) of water
supply business, whose operating assets also include intangible
assets with finite useful lives (as set out in note 20), property,
plant and equipment (as set out in note 18) and prepaid lease
payments (as set out in note 19). The carrying amounts of
goodwill, intangible assets (net of accumulated impairment
losses), property, plant and equipment (net of accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses), and prepaid lease
payments (net of accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses) as at 31 March 2013 and 2012 in this unit are as
follows:

21. BE (&)

EREE ABEREHFHIER
BE REARERFHZIDE #
BRREBALEEEREAFHZE
NHEENRZBENAFEOT

RETREARN BEEIEEBET
ReELBENU (HEELEMN) AH
IKE  ZEB2EEMEENERE
BEEBEREAFHZELEE (X
Pi5E20) - W% - HES a1 (HRMT
F18) A RTERHEE R R (FHR &
19) RZE—ZFR-_FT——_F=
A=+—H ZBUxHE E&FE
ZE (MR RFTREEE) W #aR
wiE (MR RFITERREBE)
UERBNBEENZ (HRIFATER
BEEE) 2EREBERAT

Prepaid lease Property, plant and
payments equipment Goodwill Intangible assets
ANHEEAR ER &S B B EE
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=fF —T--—F —B-= —ET-——F —E-= —ET-—F —ZE-= —E-CF

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiER AT TER AT TER THET TER THET

Water supply business k£ 6,197 7,187 55,617 63,253 - 714 28,887 33,641

tHRSELEEMN 2RO SERE
TERBRREEGRNT

The basis of the recoverable amounts of above CGUs and their

major underlying assumptions are summarized below:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2013 &

21.Goodwill (Continued)

FoT—

=FE=ZA=+—HIFE

21.

Cash generating unit of water supply business

The recoverable amount of this unit has been determined

based on a value in use calculation. For impairment purpose,

the calculation uses cash flow projections based on the most

recent financial budgets approved by the management for

the coming year and extrapolates the cash flows projection

for the following 5 years with nil (2012: 3%) growth rate and

for the further 20 years with zero growth rate and pre-tax
discount rate of 20% (2012: 18%). Another key assumptions
for the value in use calculations relate to the estimation of

cash inflows which include budgeted sales and gross margin,

such estimation is based on the unit's past performance and

management’s expectations for the market development.

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Group recognized
an impairment loss of HK$714,000 (2012: HK$6,155,000),
HK$2,141,000 (2012: HK$nil), HK$4,122,000 (2012: HK$nil)
and HK$459,000 (2012: HK$nil) in relation to goodwill,

customer contracts and operating right included in intangible

assets, property, plant and equipment and prepaid lease

payments of this CGU as the carrying amount exceeded the

recoverable amount.

Hanny Holdings Limited « $3 B 5@ HRA A

EE (&)
BBz RO EL BN

AREL 2 WE B REERE
B EEEE -BREMS &it&
EERREIRIAA - IR R IER A
ENEEERRFEAB &OMY
BRE IRBTFEERR(ZF—=
F:3% ) HERREFARIBETIE
REHEERR_TFZ2RERER
At AT AE IR R20% (Z T — 4 :
18%) EMEBEEMAEEZZS &
REERSRAZGETER (BERE
HHEBRENR)  ZEMHFTIHR
BABMZBERRARLEEEBYH TS
LRoAHMERE -

RBEZE-_ZT—=F=A=+—81t
FE AEEREAREELEL I
B REFAHRKEERERN (Bt AE
FEEE) W3 #eS RFREURTEN

HER KD B FER R EE1E714,000
BT (ZZE—=-%:6,155,000/8

JC) ~2,141,0008 L (ZE ——F :
THIT) 4,122,000 T (T ——
F:E2HE L) K4A59,0008 T (= F
—ZF :TEx) DAKEEBRAM
W el & REFTH -



22.Interests in Associates

22. BEE AR

2013 2012
—E-=F — ==
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FHIT
Cost of investment in R TAEERARIRE 2
associates which are: AN
— listed — kW 168,742 168,742
- unlisted (Note) —3E b (HfaE) 45,743 45,743
Share of post-acquisition profit and FEIEHIB 18R T R E A2
other comprehensive income, net of WA - R B UL B
dividends received 8,321 18,097
222,806 232,582

Note: Included in the cost of investment in associates was goodwill of
HK$27,308,000 (2012: HK$27,308,000) arising on acquisition of

BT - BbiE A RIRE 2 A B 4E B W R
&R B E L 2 72 27,308,000/8 7T

associate. (==& ——4%:27,308,000/87T) °
Notes: Mt -
a.  Details of the Group's principal associates as at 31 March 2012 a. ARER-F-_FR-F-ZF=
and 2013 are as follows: A=t RZEEBHEARAFHEN
T
Place of
incorporation/ Place of Proportion of equity
Name of associate establishment operation interest held by the Group  Principal activities
BERRER EEMR AR S/ B S ot 2 EEMY AEERERELH TEEH
2013 2012
—E-=F§ —E-—-fF
% %

Fortune Well Holdings British Virgin Islands Hong Kong 26.09 30 Manufacturing and trading
Limited (“Fortune ("BVI") and PRC of garments products
Well”) EERAES BERTE RERBEREEEY

Fortune Well Holdings ([RERZEHE])

Limited ([Fortune
Well |)
CEL Bermuda Hong Kong 28.95 28.95 Investment holding
BRE and PRC REZRR
L
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2013 #Z - ZF—=F=HA=+—HI FZ

22.Interests in Associates (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(Continued)

Fortune Well’s subsidiaries operate in both Hong Kong and the
PRC. During the year, due to the issue of new shares by Fortune
Well to two investors, the proportion of equity interest held by
the Group was diluted from 30% to 26.09%. A loss on deemed
disposal of partial interest in an associate of HK$655,000 was
resulted.

CEL's subsidiaries operate in both Hong Kong and the PRC and
its shares are traded on the Over-the-Counter Bulletin Board
("OTC Board”) in the United States of America. The principal
activities of CEL are investment holding. The financial year end
date of CEL is 31 December. The Group's share of net assets
and interests of CEL at 31 March 2012 and 31 March 2013 is
calculated based on the net assets of CEL as at 31 December
2011 and 31 December 2012 respectively, after adjusting for
any material transactions up to 31 March 2012 and 31 March
2013.

As at 31 March 2013, the market value of CEL held by the
Group is approximately HK$7,737,000 (2012: HK$23,824,000)
based on the quoted price in the OTC Board, as compared
to the Group's share of the carrying amount of CEL of
HK$179,877,000 (2012: HK$177,966,000).

During the year ended 31 March 2012, CEL disposed of its 26%
interest in Hangzhou Zhongce Rubber Company Limited, which
is engaged in rubber tire manufacturing business in PRC, at a
consideration of RMB600,000,000 (equivalent to approximately,
HK$729,540,000). The result of CEL shared by the Group
included the Group's share of the resulted loss on disposal
amounted to HK$117,138,000.

Hanny Holdings Limited « $3 & EER A7)

22. ME N EER (&)

B (&)

(%)

Fortune WellZ i@ R AR & B K H
Bl 48 & o £ (A - A M Fortune Well[A] /@
BREEBRTHR MAEEFFZ
% #E b Bl 30 % #4558 £26.09% ° A
It AEESSRELE —HBE R
7] &b 17 #7452 E518655,0007 7T °

CELZKMIBRARIR BB RPRHLE &
BHDEEBEIZBINZ FREIR ([HBINR
SHEERI)EBE-CELZETEEK A
WEER - CELZMBRFEEHIEAEA
TZA=tT—H -AKEEMHCELR =
T——F=A=+—HERZT—=%F
—A=t+t—BZzEEFERER I
BEBECELR =_ZE——F+_A=+—
Ak=ZZFE—Z=—F+=ZA=+—H2
BEFE KHUBE-_T—=-F=A
=+—BER=Z—=F=A=+—AH
ZEMERR G#EITHEERTTH -

J\E’\\:%?*EEE:H:TL*E RIS AN

HERZBEFE ~XEBFE
ZCELmTE%’UZ%J,BZOOO)%TE (=%
— =% :23,824,000/%70) * A%
FE 1G5 2 CELER (& 8 £179,877,000
BT (ZE— =% :177,966,000/%
JL) °

REZE=-_FT—=—F=A=+—H
IEFEAR CELEEHE RN PR
BBERAR (RFRETRBR
PR EER) z26%Em  KE A
AR #600,000,0007T (HERLG
729,540,000/% 7T ) © 7N & B F& {5 CEL
LEBEPREASBEEAMEEZHE
/E518117,138,00058 7T °



22.Interests in Associates (Continued) 22. Bt& LRz (&)

Notes: (Continued) Bt (&)

(Continued)

As a result, the directors identified indication of impairment
loss for the Group’s investment in CEL due to its significant
loss and conducted a review on the recoverable amounts of the
Group's investment in CEL and loans to CEL using value in use
calculation. The value in use calculation, instead of fair value less
cost to sell, is used to determine the recoverable amounts as the
market value of CEL is too low, in which the directors will not
consider to recover the investment in CEL through sale in the
market. The directors determine that there are no impairments
on the Group's investment in CEL and the loans to CEL using
the value in use calculation. The value in use is determined using
the Group’s share of existing cash balance and present value of
the estimated future cash flows expected to be generated by the
associate.

The above tables list the associates of the Group which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results of the
Group for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net
assets of the Group at the end of the reporting period. To give
details of other associates would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.

The summarized financial information in respect of the Group's
associates under equity method of accounting is set out below:

(&)

E It - AR CELEX S EAEIE  EEHE
EAREBNCELZRE HIRREEIE
R -UHAEAEBEAEEZHARE
ERNCELz R E 2Bl & R4 T
CELE /T2 - AR CELZ T EB
B MESRAULTETRAERE
EFEANRTS EHECELZEEMK
B WASEEFAEAEEEEM
R FERHEKALEEKRES
H-EEZRAMNAEREESE

REBMNCELZIRE ks T CELERI
ERE-CRAEENHBAEREMN
Z BB S R IEHZE & A A
EEZBHARRRESTEHREETE -

ERIB2AREB LT HEE
RETBEXEAEEFRNEERBER
AEERPHRBREEFEERL S
ZRACEBRRA AEREMEBE AR
EHNEBBBRANTTR -

AEEBERARAERGIHEAR
ZEBEMBIIMT

2013 2012

—E-=F T4

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET T T

Total assets BEHE 1,092,376 1,076,624
Total liabilities BERRE (371,995) (331,430)
Net assets BEFE 720,381 745,194
Group's share of net assets of associates 7N & B FE (5 B & A 5] & B R (A 195,498 205,274
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)

For the year ended 31 March 2013 & 2 —

22.Interests in Associates (Continued)

Bt 5 ARk Y A

F-=F=A=+—HUFE

22. ME AR (&

Notes: (Continued)

@

(Continued)

The revenue and profit for the year of the associates that are

accounted for in the consolidated statement of comprehensive

B (&)

(%)

Bt A R SR A S

ARG ERH

Was Rk AR 2 A Ros F 31 4

income using the equity method of accounting are set out e
below:
2013 2012
—E-=F —E-CF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FABIT
Revenue WA 277,619 284,992
Profit (loss) for the year F R A (ER) 14,781 (390,452)
Other comprehensive income (expense)  His2E WA (FIx%) 26,272 (3,955)
Group's share of profit (loss) and other — ZN£ B fE (Bt & A A
comprehensive income (expense) of FREMN (E1E) &
associates for the year Emz2mEmBA (k) 10,724 (113,991)

The Group has discontinued recognition of its share of losses

of certain associates. The amounts of unrecognized share of

those associates, extracted from the relevant audited financial

statements of associates, both for the year and cumulatively, are

as follows:

AEBEERIERARIGETHZ AR
ZER - UTREEZEBERRLZ
FARRFTRERRE  THHESKEE
B A RS ER M@K

2013 2012
—E-=F —ET——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT FBTT

Accumulated unrecognized share JE {5 B Z BETARER
losses of associates &8 (1,472) (1,376)

Unrecognized share of losses of FE(REE & A A 2 FRRIER

associates for the year B8 (96) (59)

Hanny Holdings Limited ¢ $8 E @ HRA 7]



23.Available-for-Sale Investments

23. A {it

HERE

2013 2012
—®—=% =
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
B aE FTHERT T T
Listed investments: EHRE:
— Equity securities listed —REBEMZBRA
in Hong Kong B 5 (a) 39,528 40,824
Unlisted securities: FEMES:
— Equity securities — R FE S (b) 62,525 156,361
102,053 197,185
Analyzed for reporting purposes as: B3R & B B DT -
Non-current assets ERBEE 102,053 120,385
Current assets MBNEE - 76,800
102,053 197,185
Notes: Vo

All listed investments are stated at fair value which is determined
based on the quoted market bid prices available on the Stock
Exchange.

The unlisted equity securities represent an investee (2012: two
investees) engaged in holding of properties interest located in
the PRC. The unlisted equity securities are measured at cost
less impairment at the end of the reporting period because
the range of reasonable fair value estimates is so significant
that the directors of the Company are of the opinion that their
fair value cannot be measured reliably. An impairment loss of
HK$18,000,000 was recognized in profit or loss during the
year as there is objective evidence that the cost of investments
cannot be recoverable.

During the year, the 8% interest in Newskill Investments Limited
(“Newskill”) which engaged in holding of properties investment
located in the PRC with the carrying amount of HK$76,800,000
was disposed of as set out in note 25. No gain or loss was
recognized from the disposal. No such disposal noted for the
year ended 31 March 2012.

Annual Report 2012/2013 F 3R

FiE EmiR BB ARB R X PR 2
FrsmisE ANBEE 2 A FEINR-

FEMRABHEEFRFBLRF
BrzmEfEasrz B (ZT——4F:
ME)EZRERAGR -BRAEBRAT
EfTEHEEER MARREER
BIELEMRARS Z A FEELASE
s 2 R B IR AR IR A A BB E T
EXERF ARTEZEERES
TREW EEE KA MAEBEAND
M8 % 7E7218,000,00058 7T 2 Bl {E &5

8o

WK 25 E AEBERERN
H & Newskill Investments Limited
(INewskill | - 27 A5 B LA H
ZMERE) 28%ER  HEREES
76,800,000 7T ° 7 5 [ 3F & 5t H &
EHERRABH - BE-_T——F=A
=+ HRLEFETEESEHRLES

I8 o
)



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2013 #Z - ZF—=F=HA=+—HI FZ

24.Gain on Replacement of 24 ER TR EE 2 W H
Convertible Note/Gain on Disposal SRR W a
of Convertible Note

During the year ended 31 March 2007, the Group acquired a REE-_ZTT+tF=A=+—HILF
convertible note issued by ITC Properties Group Limited (“ITC EA AEBRBEEFEHESERR
Properties”), a company whose shares are listed in the Stock AR ([EEME] - B RO R FT
Exchange, with principal amount of HK$270,000,000 and EMFRBITZARKRERE - E@A
coupon interest rate of 1% per annum due on 15 June 2011. R ZE g 2 N4 %8 £270,000,0007%

T REFNES 1% R_F——F
NATHBARE-

In May 2011, the Group accepted the offer made by ITC RZE——FRA AEEEMNE
Properties to repurchase the 1% ITC Properties convertible HHWEFEL CELN ABETHAIR
note in the outstanding principal amount of HK$270,000,000 BEBEz2FABLOREERASTEL
by way of issue of new convertible note. On 25 May 2011, 270,000,000 JC 21 % B H ZE 7]
new convertible note in principal amount of HK$297,000,000 BREBE - RZE——FHA=-TH
at the initial conversion price of HK$2.20 per conversion share H A& % A297,000,000/8 7T Z 1
was issued to the Group. A gain on such replacement of AR ER R R VIR E & R
HK$1,468,000 was recognized in profit or loss as the fair value D220 TBITTAEE - R A
of the new convertible note exceeds the carrying value of the BMREE 2 AP EBRARE T HRKRE
existing convertible note. BeRHE WX ESERE R KE

1,468,000/ JT ©

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the Group disposed REBEZE-T——_F=A=+—HIF
of the new convertible note at a total consideration ER-AEBE 2K E311,850,000
of HK$311,850,000 with a net gain on disposal of BITHEMAIMKRER RERER
HK$13,451,000 recognized in profit or loss. 2 HE W FEE /13,451,000 7T

14) Hanny Holdings Limited « $3 & EER A7)



25.Deposit for Acquisition of Interest

in a Jointly Controlled Entity

On 29 September 2010, the Group entered into a conditional
agreement with ITC Properties Holdings Group Limited, a direct
wholly-owned subsidiary of ITC Properties, for the acquisition
of 50% interest in ITC Properties (China) Limited (“ITCP
(China)”, a wholly-owned subsidiary of ITC Properties Holdings
Group Limited) and the outstanding shareholders’ loan for
a total consideration of HK$480,000,000 (“Acquisition of
50% interest in ITCP (China)”). Deposit of HK$350,000,000
was paid upon signing the conditional agreement. Before the
completion of the Acquisition of 50% interest in ITCP (China),
ITCP (China) is required to acquire the entire issued share
capital of and (if any) the shareholders’ loans due by Newskill.
Newskill is an investment holding company and its subsidiaries
are holding a property development project on a land situated
in PRC. The Group held 8% interest in Newskill, which was
classified as available-for-sale investment.

During the year ended 31 March 2010, the Group entered
into a conditional sale and purchase agreement to dispose
of its 8% interest in Newskill, at a cash consideration of
HK$76,800,000. The disposal became part of the condition
for the Acquisition of 50% interest in ITCP (China) on 29
September 2010 as stated above. The disposal of 8% interest
in Newskill has been completed during the year.

As at 31 March 2013, ITCP has completed the acquisition of
the entire issued share capital and the shareholders’ loan due
by Newskill. However, the acquisition of 50% interest in ITCP
(China) has not yet been completed as at 31 March 2013 and
at the date of approval for the issuance of the consolidated
financial statements as the conditions of shareholders’

approval have not yet been met.
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25. Wi —BHAEEHEREEDS

\K

ZE &

RZE—ZTFNA=+IB KTEE
HEFEWECEEZEMB A RITC
Properties Holdings Group Limited
Rl A GEE AREBITC
Properties (China) Limited ([ITCP
(China) | * ITC Properties Holdings
Group LimitedZ 2 &K B AR )Z
50%Em M REERRENR  LRE
#3480,000,0007% 7T ([ITCP (China)
S0%EmWBEIR]) - RELE K
14 13 & B B X £9350,000,0007% 7T
Z &1 & o FAITCP (China) 50%7 2 Ik
FEEIBSERC AT ITCP (China)ZB i B8
NewskillZ2 F 2 Z/TIRA K& (10F)
Newskill /& 1 2 B 3 & 5K ° Newskill &
—EEREERAR ENBATRA
— B E— Rk WEERIE
B o ANE B35 A Newskill 8% 425 B
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRE

For the year ended 31 March 2013 #Z —-—ZF—=F=HA=+—HI FZ

- =+ W]/ Ry I

26.Properties Held for Sale 26. FFSHEN=
HK$'000
T
At 1 April 2011 RZZE——FMH—H 232,231
Additions NE 72,610
Disposals H & (62,193)
Impairment loss VERIEY R ] (15,448)
Currency realignment HNEE T B 3,035
At 31 March 2012 R-_ZF——F=A=+—8H 230,235
Additions NE 6,506
Disposals & (157,626)
At 31 March 2013 R-_E—=F=A=+—H 79,115
During the year 31 March 2012, an impairment loss of RBE_Z-——_F=RA=+—HILF

HK$15,448,000 was recognized for properties held for sale

as the expected realizable value was less than the carrying

amount.

During the year 31 March 2013, the Group completed the

disposal of a property, at a consideration of HK$160,000,000,

whilst properties held for sale of HK$6,506,000 was acquired.

For the disposal of the property with total consideration of
HK$160,000,000, HK$80,096,000 was directly deducted from
the consideration and repaid to a bank for loan repayment

without going through bank account of the Group.
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27.Properties Under Development for

Sale

The properties under development for sale was acquired
through the acquisition of 60% interest in Best Smooth
International Limited (“Best Smooth”) during the year ended
31 March 2010.

The properties under development for sale represents land
use rights for a piece of land located in Guangzhou, PRC and
development costs incurred to date on the properties erected
on it. The development work has not yet been completed and
has been suspended for over 10 years. Upon completion of
acquisition of 60% interests in Best Smooth by the Group in
December 2009, the Group reactived the development and
commenced to negotiate with various contractors for the
design and implementation of the construction work of the
properties.

During the year ended 31 March 2011, the Group further
acquired the remaining 40% interest in Best Smooth and 3%
interest in a non-wholly owned subsidiary of Best Smooth.
The Group's interest in Best Smooth and its subsidiaries was
increased to 100% thereafter.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRE

For the year ended 31 March 2013 &

27.Properties Under Development for

Sale (Continued)

FoT—

=FE=ZA=+—HIFE

27.

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the Group entered

into a framework agreement with an independent third party,

Prosperous Global Development Limited (“Prosperous Global”),

to dispose of 49% equity interest in China Good Investments

Limited (“China Good"”), an indirect wholly owned subsidiary

of Best Smooth which holds the properties under development
for sale in the PRC, at the consideration of RMB622,383,080

(equivalent to approximately

HK$746,860,000). In June,

September, October 2011 and February 2012, the parties

to the framework agreement further entered into the
supplemental agreements. A total of RMB523,302,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$607,613,000) consideration

were received and accordingly a total of 41% equity interest
in proportional to the total consideration of RMB622,383,080
(equivalent to approximately HK$746,860,000) was transferred

to Prosperous Global in a single tranche during the year ended

31 March 2012. As the Group has not lost control over China

Good, the loss on disposal of 41% equity interests in China
Good amounting to HK$11,202,000, being the difference
between the carrying amount of HK$618,815,000 of the
41% interests transferred and the consideration received was

debited to other reserves during the year ended 31 March

2012.

The remaining 8% interest in China Good was also transferred

to Prosperous Global upon

the receipt of remaining

consideration of HK$122,115,000 during the year ended
31 March 2013. An amount of HK$63,182,000, being the
difference between the carrying amount of HK$185,297,000
of the 8% interests transferred and the consideration received

was debited to other reserves during the year ended 31 March

2013.
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27.Properties Under Development for

Sale (Continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the Group slowed
down the property development work pending changes to the
development plan which require government approval. The
management of the Group had determined that, taking into
account of the progress in the development of the project and
the latest changes, it was not likely that the project would
be completed within the Group’'s normal operating cycle.
Accordingly, the properties under development for sale were
classified as non-current assets as at 31 March 2012.

During the year ended 31 March 2013, revised construction
plan was submitted to and approved by local government.
The construction work is in progress and the management
of the Group has determined that, taking into account of
the progress of the construction work, it is likely that the
project will be completed within the Group’s normal operating
cycle. Accordingly, the properties under development for sale
were classified as current assets as at 31 March 2013. The
management of the Group does not expect the project to be
realized within next 12 months.

Valuation of the properties under development for sale as at
31 March 2013 has been carried out by an independent valuer
by reference to open market value and the market evidence of
transaction prices for similar properties in the same locations
and conditions and the directors of the Company consider that

no impairment indication is noted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2013 #Z —-—ZF—=F=HA=+—HI FZ

28.Trade and Other Receivables and 28. B R EAMBWARBEREN
Prepayments I
2013 2012
—E—= —E——F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTHT FEIT
Trade receivables B 5 W RIE 237 1,573
Prepayment for materials for property Y ERZIEB YR 2
construction projects (note a) TEfTRIA (B ata) 31,732 31,340
Prepaid land appreciation tax (note a) B L bR ER (A ata) 18,318 17,915
Other receivables (net of allowance H b fE U FTE (0B RER
for doubtful debts) ) 9,203 12,391
Dividend receivables JE YRR B 17,200 =
Interest receivables FEWF S 2 32
Deposits and prepayments (note b) e RIEFRIE (Ki7b) 584,657 5,438
661,349 68,689

Notes:

Prepayment for materials for property construction projects
and prepaid land appreciation tax were incurred under ordinary
course of business. Therefore, they are classified as current
assets.

As at 31 March 2013, the balance includes approximately
HK$499,376,000 (2012: HK$nil) prepayment paid to a
contractor and approximately HK$79,900,000 (2012: HK$nil)
prepayment of consultancy fee paid to a related party of
Prosperous Global in relation to the construction work of
properties under development for sale. The management of the
Group do not expect the project to be realized with in next 12
months.
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28.Trade and Other Receivables and

Prepayments (Continued)

The Group allows an average credit period of one to two
months to its trade customers. The following is an aged
analysis of trade receivable, presented based on invoice
date, net of allowance for doubtful debts at the end of each
reporting period:

8. E5 R H A EWRIA K AN

IR (&)

AEEREESEFPREHETE —EM
AATEZEEHR REHBFHK
BHRYHE (REZBH25)M
BRRRBEZREDITAT :

2013 2012

—E—-= —EF——F

HK$000 HK$'000

FHET THET

0-30 days 0£30H 237 1,573

Before accepting any new customer, the Group will assess and
understand the potential customer’s credit quality and defines
its credit limits. Credit limits attributed to each customer are
reviewed regularly.

No trade receivable balance is past due at the reporting date
for which the Group has not provided for impairment loss for
both years.

No allowance for doubtful debts on trade receivables was
provided and no movement in the allowance was noted for
both years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B EmRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2013 #Z —-—ZF—=F=HA=+—HI FZ

28.Trade and Other Receivables and 28. B H th & WK TE R FEAS
Prepayments (Continued) mlﬁ (,,.,a)
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts on other H b e I GRIA R R 2 & &)
receivables
2013 2012
—E-=F —E—_F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FBT TABIT
Balance at beginning of the year FHEERR - 2,350
Allowance for other receivables H b & R TE B 6,435 164
Amounts written off as uncollectible M AT E 2 &5 (6,435) (2,514)
Balance at end of the year FIREERR - -
The allowance recognized on other receivable is mainly MEAMERFIERRZBEIERH
because of those debtors have financial difficulties. B BR 2 E APTE -
29.Investments Held for Trading 29. HFEEERE
Investments held for trading at the end of the reporting period REFRAR FEEEREBE:
include:
2013 2012
—E—-= —E——4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FABIT
Listed securities at fair value: BEAFYEZETES
— Equity securities listed in Hong Kong —REBEB LT ZRAE 5 41,874 6,668
— Equity securities listed elsewhere —REMM T ETz
N 891 264
42,765 6,932
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30.Short-Term Loans Receivable

30. EWEHRE X

2013 2012

—E—=F —E——F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FH T FH T

Loans receivable e E X 4,416 5,000

During the year, the Group advanced HK$9,166,000 unsecured
short-term loan to a subsidiary of a listed company and an
amount of HK$4,750,000 was repaid up to 31 March 2013.

As at 31 March 2012, the loan receivable represented an
unsecured promissory note of HK$5,000,000 issued by a
listed company in favor of the Group for the settlement
of HK$5,000,000 secured loan receivable balance brought
forward from prior year. During the year, the issuer of the
promissory note has settled the principal and the interest of
the promissory note.

The loans receivable carry interest at Hong Kong Prime Rate

and are repayable on demand.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MBEEmRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2013 B Z=F—=F=HA=+—HIF&

31.Loans to Associates/Amount Due 3. A THE AR EREATH
to an Associate —WNCIEE]
(i)  Loans to associates (iy #HTHBENAER
2013 2012
—EBE-=F —ZE—_4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FETT
Loans to associates BT ERRIERK
— Interest-free = TE B 87,838 87,831
The amounts are unsecured and expected to be ZESRABEBAREHTR
recovered within twelve months after the end of AR EAE + (@ A Rk E -

reporting period.

(i)  Amount due to an associate (i) FMEREZAFRIE
The amount is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on ZECHEAERMERE WA
demand. JEEREE-
32.Bank Balances and Cash 32. RITHERERE
The bank balances and cash comprises cash and short-term RITER LB SBREAEEMEE 2
bank deposits with an original maturity of three months or less RERRIFABR=ZFEAARNZE
held by the Group. The bank balances carries interest at 0.01% HASRITIE R - SRIT A BRIEF B.0.01%
to 0.35% per annum (2012: 0.01% to 5.95% per annum). £035% (ZE——F:F80.01%

£5.95% )t B e
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33.Trade and Other Payables and 33. B R AMENRERE
Accruals g2H
2013 2012
—E2—-= —E—CF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET T
Trade payables B 5 38 17,593 13,744
Accrued expenses FEET R XX 16,446 16,860
Interest payables JE T F) 2 8,173 19,871
Payables for construction project BRIBE Z IR 91,193 32,868
Other payables (note a) E b SR8 (Hfita) 99,875 98,644
Others (note b) HAh (fraEb) 32,965 60,037
266,245 242,024
The following is an aged analysis of REBRHER B F R
trade payable (based on the BRI (IRER
invoices date) at the end of HEEZZ)) T :
each reporting period:
0-30 days 0&30H 11,195 7,346
Over 60 days B 3860 H 6,398 6,398
17,593 13,744
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2013 #Z - ZF—=F=HA=+—HI FZ

33.Trade and Other Payables and
Accruals (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

In previous years, Guangzhou Jixiang Properties Limited
(“Guangzhou Jixiang”), a subsidiary of Best Smooth, entered
into presale agreements with a purchaser for the disposal of
certain of the properties under development for sale. The sale
transaction has not been completed since the construction of
the properties has not yet been completed, and accordingly, no

revenue has been recognized.

Since the property project has been suspended for a number of
years, the purchaser has agreed with Guangzhou Jixiang that it
would obtain a refund of deposits amount of RMB103,863,000
together with interests thereon from Guangzhou Jixiang instead
of completing the purchase of the properties. During the year
ended 31 March 2012, the principal amount of the deposits
of RMB103,863,000 was repaid. The interest portion, which
is interest-free, of the deposits of HK$99,875,000 (2012:
HK$98,644,000) was not yet repaid.

As at 31 March 2013 and 2012, the other payables are
unsecured and interest-free.

As at 31 March 2012, included in “Others”
HK$28,157,000 represents a penalty on deferred payment
on the land transfer premium payable by Guangzhou lJixiang,

above,

for the change on the land development purpose from both
commercial and residential use to commercial use only. The
penalty was fully settled during the year ended 31 March 2013.

|=:]
B5
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=

EE

(a)
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34.Borrowings

34. Ft?r)\

2013 2012
—E—-=F —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FHET
Borrowings comprise: ESECE
Secured bank borrowings BHEMRITERK 785,299 110,040
Unsecured other borrowings 4 4 4 B A 15 5K 81,429 105,896
866,728 215,936
The amounts are repayable as follows: Lt RIBZE R DA T 5 2B
g
The Group's borrowings are repayable REEZ BREZRER
based on repayment schedules set out I a A D B
in the loan agreements, as follows: EEWT:
— within one year ——FR 81,429 185,896
— more than one year, but not —— FRETBBWE
exceeding two years 508,585 -
— more than two years, —MEREBIABAREE
but not more than five years 131,170 -
— more than five years —hHF% 109,309 =
The Group's borrowings that contain a RERBHEFHEZRENRE
repayable on demand clause in the BIFRZRNEBERR:
loan agreements:
— within one year ——FR 5,925 1,648
— not repayable within one year from —FREAREET B AR
the end of the reporting period —FREERE 30,310 28,392
866,728 215,936
Less: Amounts due within one year BoAARBEEET
shown under current liabilities R—FAEIH 2 I8 (117,664) (215,936)
749,064 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRE

For the year ended 31 March 2013 #Z - ZF—=F=HA=+—HI FZ

35.

. . H
34.Borrowings (Continued) 34. 55K (&)
The Group’s borrowings were based on Hong Kong Prime REBERIREAZRERNER BB
Rate, HIBOR and benchmark interest rate in People’s Bank of RITRIFEFR B R AZE A RLME 2 &
China. The ranges of effective interest rates during the year ERBRAE - ANEBEINAEE
(which are equal to contractual interest rates) on the Group's BERAE (BERE LT =) & E
borrowings are as follows: T
2013 2012
—EB-=F —E—_F
Effective interest rate: BERA =R
Variable-rate borrowings 2 EER 1.76% to= 10%  0.94% toZ 7%
Included in the total amount of HK$156,272,000 RNRERNEEBEZERERBE
loan repayment repaid during the year, an amount of 156,272,000/ JT# + 80,096,000/%
HK$80,096,000 was directly deducted from the consideration TEEEREES B AR IEHE DS
for disposal of a property classified as properties held for sale ZOEREBINRG  EIS5E M EE26 ©
as set out in note 26.
Share Capital 35. A
Number of
shares Value
& B EE
HK$'000
T T
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each FREE.01EIT 2 EBEA
Authorized: EERRA
At 31 March 2012 and R-ZE——F=fA=+—HK
31 March 2013 —E—=F=F=+—H 20,000,000,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: EBETREERA:
Balance at 1 April 2011 RZE——FMA—R2#& 124,589,591 1,246
Rights issue (note) AR (A7) 996,716,728 9,967
Balance at 31 March 2012 and RZE——F=A=+—HK
31 March 2013 —T—=—F=-A=+—Hz&#% 1,121,306,319 11,213
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35.

36.

Share Capital (Continued)

Note: During the year ended 31 March 2012, a total of 996,716,728
new shares were issued on 13 April 2011, pursuant to the rights
issue on the basis of eight rights shares for every one share at a
subscription price of HK$0.30 per rights share.

All shares issued in both years ranked pari passu with other

shares in issue in all respects.

Convertible Loan Notes

The Company issued convertible loan notes with principal
amount of HK$770,973,000 during the year ended 31 March
2007. The fair value of the liability component at the date
of issue was HK$627,636,000. The convertible loan notes
carry interest at 2% per annum and matured on 6, 13, 17
and 23 June 2011 respectively. The convertible loan notes are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars. The initial conversion price
is HK$9.00 per share and subject to anti-dilutive adjustments.
The conversion price of the convertible loan notes had been
adjusted from HK$9.00 per share to HK$0.81 per share and
further to HK$0.67 per share as a result of the bonus issue of
shares during the year ended 31 March 2008. The conversion
price of the convertible loan notes was adjusted from HK$0.67
per share to HK$33.50 per share as a result of the share
consolidation effective on 3 November 2008 and further to
HK$15.83 per share as a result of the shares under open offer
in March 2009. Following the share consolidation in March
2011, the conversion price of the convertible loan notes was
adjusted to HK$158.34. The effective interest rate of the
liability component during the year ended 31 March 2011 is
from 7.02% to 7.18% per annum.
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36.Convertible Loan Notes

(Continued)

Unless previously converted by the convertible loan note
holders, the Company will redeem the convertible loan notes
on the maturity date at 100% of the principal amount of the
convertible loan notes then outstanding on 6, 13, 17 and 23
June 2011 respectively.

During the year ended 31 March 2011, the Company
repurchased the convertible loan notes at their face value. The
purchase price is to be satisfied by the issue of the ordinary
shares of the Company at HK$0.5 each. The Company received
valid acceptances in respect of the convertible loan notes
in an aggregate principal amount of HK$342,223,515. The
Company issued and allotted a total of 684,447,030 new
ordinary shares to the accepting bondholders. The difference
between the market value of the shares to be issued to
repurchase the convertible loan notes and the carrying
amount of the corresponding convertible loan notes of
approximately HK$12,695,000, representing a loss arising from
extinguishment of the convertible loan notes was recognized in

profit or loss.

The principal amount of the convertible loan notes as at
31 March 2011 was HK$364,475,000 (carrying amount:
HK$367,341,000). The whole amount was redeemed by the
Company upon maturity during the year ended 31 March 2012
by cash.

—=F=HA=+—HIFFE
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36.Convertible Loan Notes

37.

(Continued)

The movement of the liability component of the convertible
loan notes for the year ended 31 March 2012 is set out below:

36. AIRIRERERE

(&

REBEE—_ZE——F=A=+—HILF
EARARBRERZR BB #

3T -

HK$’000
FHAT
Carrying amount at 1 April 2011 RZZE-——FMUNA—-—HBZEREE 367,341
Imputed interest charged to profit or loss FFABEZHERNE 4,427
Coupon interest paid BEXES (7,293)

Redemption of convertible loan AR E R E AR S B fE
notes upon maturity (364,475)

Carrying amount at 31 March 2012

R-EBE——F=A=+—HBzKAEAE

Principal amount at 31 March 2012

RZEBE-——F=A=+—HBZA&H

Deferred Tax 37. IR IR
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets) REANEBRZEIZELERIEBEER
recognized and movements thereon during the year: (BE)RHEEHWT :
Fair value
adjustment
of intangible
assets and
property,
plant and
equipment
Revaluation arising Accelerated
of investment on business tax Tax
property  combination  depreciation losses Total
REHAH
ME£Z
BEREER
nx BER
REATE
RENEER HE  NEHERE HaEkE ag
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
T T TR TR T
At 1 April 2011 R=E——F@A-H 25,963 20,669 686 (1,395) 45,923
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBLE = (7,072) = - (7,072)
(Credit) charge to profit or loss (note) i CEL M ON R0 ) (25,963) (1,815) (602) 1,364 (27,016)
At 31 March 2012 RZZE-Z#=A=+-H = 11,782 84 (31) 11,835
Credit to profit or loss (note) RERFAR (M) = (830) = = (830)
At 31 March 2013 RIE-=£=ZA=1-H - 10,952 84 (31) 11,005
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRE

For the year ended 31 March 2013 #Z - ZF—=F=HA=+—HI FZ

37.Deferred Tax (Continued) 37. R TE (&)
Note: K it -
Deferred tax credited to profit or loss included in: ERHTAZBELERIERT A
2013 2012
—E—= —E—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT FHBIT
Continuing operations B E E TS (830) (26,032)
Discontinued operation (note 12) B IEEEZER (Hit12) - (984)
(830) (27,016)

For the purposes of presentation in the consolidated statement
of financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities
have been offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred

tax balances for financial reporting purposes:

RERAMBEIMARZZ2IIME & T
EERBEERBBED THEH AT
RYERA TS HR R i BRI IR A R D
i

2013 2012

—_E—= —E——F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT TFATT

Deferred tax assets FEEFHIEE E (31) (31)
Deferred tax liabilities RAEF IR B E 11,036 11,866
11,005 11,835

The Group has unused tax losses of HK$710,490,000 as
at 31 March 2013 (2012: HK$587,440,000) available for
offset against future profits. A deferred tax asset has been
recognized in respect of such tax losses amounting to
HK$196,000 (2012: HK$196,000). No deferred tax has been
recognized in respect of the remaining HK$710,294,000
(2012: HK$587,244,000) due to the unpredictability of future
profit streams. The losses can be carried forward indefinitely.

Hanny Holdings Limited « $3 B &@EHR A 7
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38.Acquisition of Assets Through 38. 3
Acquisition of a Subsidiary

(a)

B

On 15 June 2012, the Group entered into a sale and (a)
purchase agreement to acquire 100% of the issued

share capital of Adrian Realty Limited, which is engaged

in property investment and its major assets consist of

numbers of car parking spaces, at a consideration of
HK$6,500,000. The acquisition was completed on 5 July

2012.

This acquisition has been accounted for as an acquisition
of assets and liabilities. The effect of the acquisition is
summarized as follows:

BUE— BN E LR UEE
5=

R_Z—=—FXA+HA &&
B ZEEWmZE NKEHEE
HEBR AT Z100%2 /T
AN R (B £6,500,0005 7 © H
EEARARZEBAEME
RE MEXEEEREZEN
BHA - WBEHEEN-_ZT——F
+tAEHAZERK-

B EEEIEREEE R
BE-WESFEZZEHRN
T

HK$'000
FHET
Net assets acquired: Frife i 2 & = A
Properties held for sale FEHE WX 6,506
Trade and other payables B 5 Rk E AR FRIA (6)
Total consideration BRE 6,500
Consideration satisfied by: REZZHAR:
Cash Be 6,500
6,500
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: ElEmEE 2 FRES M
Cash consideration paid BB RE (6,500)

The subsidiary acquired did not contribute any significant
results or cash flow to the Group for the year ended 31
March 2013.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2013 B Z=F—=F=HA=+—HIF&

38.Acquisition of Assets Through 38. &3 W s — B /B 2 B UK Bs
. . s

Acquisition of a Subsidiary g8F (&

(Continued)

(b) In March 2012, the Group entered into a sale and b) RZFE—=—F=RA AKEHF]
purchase agreement to acquire 100% of the issued share B E W& AUEENice Sun
capital of Nice Sun Investments Limited (“Nice Sun”) at Investments Limited ([Nice
a consideration of HK$10,000,000. Nice Sun is engaged Sun ) Z100% 2 24T IR 2N - £
in property investment and its major assets consist of & 410,000,000/ 7T ° Nice Sun
a basket of residential and commercial properties. The LEBRMERE MEXTEER
acquisition was completed on the same day. ERE—ETFEEREEME-

WEEBEERFRBATTK -
The acquisition has been accounted for as an acquisition KEEBEEIIERBEERE
of assets and liabilities. The effect of the acquisition is B WBEEZZEHMNOT
summarized as follows:
HK$'000
FAT
Net assets acquired: P 2 & E S E
Properties held for sale FEHEY X 9,977
Deposits HEA 23
Total consideration RRE 10,000
Consideration satisfied by: REzZZHAR:
Cash e 10,000
10,000
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: EWEmES 2 FRE M
Cash consideration paid ENRERE (10,000)
The subsidiary acquired did not contribute any significant REBEZE-_ZE——F=A=+—
results or cash flow to the Group for the year ended 31 HIEFE Tk oM E AR
March 2012. BRASEEREMENES

FRERE -

16) Hanny Holdings Limited * $2EEEH R A 7



39.Deposits Received in Advance

The amounts included the deposits of HK$190,259,000 (2012:
HK$187,914,000) received in advance in previous years by Best
Smooth for the presale of certain properties which were under
development.

Other purchaser had also entered into presale agreement
with Best Smooth in previous years and paid certain deposits
of RMB103,863,000 for the purchase as set out in note 33.
However, since the property project has been suspended for a
number of years, the purchaser has agreed with Guangzhou
Jixiang that it would obtain refund of deposits amount
of RMB103,863,000 together with interests thereon from
Guangzhou Jixiang instead of completing the purchase of the
properties.

The remaining HK$16,000,000 deposit as at 31 March 2012
represented the deposit received for the disposal of a property
classified as properties held for sale, at a total consideration of
HK$160,000,000 as stated in note 26.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRE

For the year ended 31 March 2013 B Z=F—=F=HA=+—HIF&

40.Disposal of Subsidiaries

Other than the disposal of Disposal Group set out in note
12, during the year ended 31 March 2012, the Group also
disposed of 100% interest in Central Top Group Limited
(“Central Top”) for a consideration of HK$3,000,000. Central

Top is an investment holding company.

40. HEKE AT

B Fft

AR12#at 2 S S S E

REBEE-_ZT——F=ZA=+—81L
FE - AEEITE HECentral Top
Group Limited ([Central Topl)Z

100%# 2= + X8 43,000,000/ T °
Central Top B EIER R F]

Disposal
Group Central Top Total
HEEXE Central Top B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T
Property, plant and equipment Y2 - HeEE R R 28,653 - 28,653
Intangible assets BEE 16,980 - 16,980
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE = 25,925 25,925
Trade and other receivables and 8 5 & H b g W IE K&
prepayments TE FIE 3,871 - 3,871
Bank balances and cash RITEFRES 169 - 169
Trade and other payables and 5 RkEAMERNFKIE R
accruals JEEHE R (19,983) (170) (20,153)
Tax payable FE T 18 - (24,064) (24,064)
Deferred tax liabilities REFRIEE & (7,072) = (7,072)
22,618 1,691 24,309
Non-controlling interests FEPE MR I A 960 - 960
23,578 1,691 25,269
Exchange reserve realized BERE N REE (26,138) = (26,138)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries & BB A B Uk & 27,560 1,309 28,869
25,000 3,000 28,000
Satisfied by: SR
Cash bizhc 25,000 3,000 28,000
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEmMEELZ
FHEBMA:
Cash consideration HeNE 25,000 3,000 28,000
Bank balances and cash disposed of FriH&E#HRTHET RES (169) = (169)
24,831 3,000 27,831
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40.Disposal of Subsidiaries

41

(Continued)

Central Top did not make any significant contribution to the
cash flows of the Group during the year. Details of the cash

flows of the Disposal Group are set out in note 12.

.Major Non-Cash Transactions

During the year ended 31 March 2013, as stated in notes 26
and 34, upon disposal of a property with total consideration of
HK$160,000,000, HK$80,096,000 loan repayment was directly
deducted from the consideration, without going through the
bank account of the Group.

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the major non-cash
transactions of the Group were as follows:

(i)  As set out in note 30, the Group received an unsecured
promissory note of HK$5,000,000 from a listed company
for the settlement of HK$5,000,000 secured loan

receivable balance brought forward from prior year.

(i) A loan of HK$40,000,000 included in other borrowings
was raised during the year ended 31 March 2012. Out of
the total repayments of HK$27,571,000 made in respect
of the loan, HK$17,610,000 was settled through the
set off of other receivables included in trade and other
receivables with fellow subsidiaries of the lender.

(i) During the year, additions to properties under
development for sale of HK$179,692,000 was transferred
from prepayment for materials for property construction
project included in trade and other receivables and

prepayments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRE

For the year ended 31 March 2013 B Z=F—=F=HA=+—HIF&

42.Contingent Liabilities

42. SIARERE

2013 2012
—E—=fF —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT TABIT
Amounts granted in respect of R—HBERARMEREE
guarantees given to banks MEIRITIRHEERT R T
for facilities granted to an associate ZEH 75,000 75,000
2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT TABIT
Amounts utilized in respect of R—HEERARMEREE
guarantees given to banks for M) R 1T 4R AL HE 4R T 2 AR
facilities granted to an associate ZEH 42,223 38,509
Save as disclosed above, the Group has no other contingent B EXFIHEEEN AEER_Z

liabilities as at 31 March 2013 and 31 March 2012.

—=ZF=A=+—RAkZT—_F=
A=tT—HYEEMAAEE-

43.0perating Leases 43. EEHL

The Group as lessee AEBEEREEA
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FAT

Minimum lease payments paid BEEERNZH 2
under operating leases: REBAEMNK:

Land and buildings T MEF 6,267 5,757

16? Hanny Holdings Limited * $2EEEH R A 7



43.0perating Leases (Continued)
The Group as lessee (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments in respect of
rented premises under non-cancellable operating leases which
fall due as follows:

43. &0 (&)
AEBIERKBA (&)
REBBBK - AR HHRBTTH

WA PREEMEZRK
REHENFAEZZ BT :

2013 2012

—E—= —EF—_F

HK$°000 HK$'000

FTHER T

Within one year —F R 5,031 5,759
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_EFERF

(BHREREMEF) 2,303 7,548

7,334 13,307

Leases are negotiated for lease term of three to four years
(2012: three to four years) and rentals are fixed over the terms
of the leases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRE

For the year ended 31 March 2013 B Z=F—=F=HA=+—HIF&

44.Share Option Scheme 44,

Pursuant to a resolution passed at a special general meeting
of the Company on 17 March 2003, the Company has
terminated the share option scheme passed in 2001 and
adopted a new share option scheme (the “2003 Share Option
Scheme”). Under the 2003 Share Option Scheme, the board
of directors of the Company may grant options to directors
and employees of the Group and any advisors, consultants,
distributors, contractors, suppliers, agents, customers, business
partners, joint venture business partners, promoters and
service providers of any members of the Group who the board
of directors considers have contributed or will contribute or
can contribute to the Group. The purpose of the 2003 Share
Option Scheme is to provide participants with the opportunity
to acquire proprietary interests in the Group and to encourage
participants to work towards enhancing the value of the
Group and its shares for the benefits of the Group and its
shareholders as a whole.

Subject to the condition that the total number of shares which
may be issued upon the exercise of all outstanding options
granted and to be exercised under the 2003 Share Option
Scheme and any other schemes of the Company must not
exceed 30% of the shares of the Company in issue from time
to time, the total number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the 2003 Share Option Scheme, when
aggregated with any shares subject to any other schemes, is
not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in
issue on the date of approval and adoption of the 2003 Share
Option Scheme.
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44 .Share Option Scheme (Continued)

45.

Under the 2003 Share Option Scheme, the options which may
be granted to any individual in any one year are not permitted
to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue, without
prior approval from the Company’s shareholders. Options
granted to substantial shareholders or independent non-
executive directors in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s share
capital or with a value in excess of HK$5 million must be
approved in advance by the Company’s shareholders.

Options granted must be taken up within 28 days from the
date of grant, upon payment of HK$1 per grant. Options may
be exercised at any time from the date on which the option
is accepted to the tenth anniversary of the date of grant. The
exercise price is determined by the directors of the Company,
and will not be less than the higher of the closing price of the
Company shares on the date of grant or the average closing
price of the shares for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant or the nominal value of the share
of the Company.

The 2003 Share Option Scheme was expired on 17 March
2013. No options were outstanding under the 2003 Share
Option Scheme at 31 March 2012 and 2013.

Retirement Benefits Schemes

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF")
scheme for qualifying employees of the Company and its
subsidiaries in Hong Kong. The assets of the MPF scheme
are held separately from those of the Group, in funds
under the control of trustees. The Group contributes 5% of
relevant payroll costs to the scheme subject to a maximum of
HK$1,000 per month prior to 31 May 2012 and HK$1,250 per
month from 1 June 2012, which contribution is matched by
employees.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2013 B Z=F—=F=HA=+—HIF&

45.Retirement Benefits Schemes 45, RIRERIFTE (&)

(Continued)

The Group’s employees who are employed by subsidiaries in
the PRC are members of the state-managed retirement benefit
scheme operated by the PRC government. These subsidiaries
are required to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll
to the retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit
scheme is to make the specified contributions.

The total cost charged to profit or loss of HK$1,266,000
(2012: HK$1,146,000) represents contributions payable
to these schemes by the Group in respect of the current
accounting period. As at 31 March 2013, no contribution was
due in respect of the reporting period had not been paid over
to these schemes.

XERTEMNBARZAEERER
BRI AT I 2 B R B IR AR KA A
AEIRE -ZEMBRARAKIES

T B2 ERZERKEFE & 2
R RBAHREHRES AEBHZE
KBNS 2 AEERELRE 2 H#

e
oA °

B NHIBR 2 85K 2N 1,266,000/8 7T

(=ZZF— =4 :1,146,000/% 7T ) 5 A
EEpAS B ZETEEMNZ

HRK-R_FE—=F=H=1+—8"
3 4 (e R 35 5% B At Y S 1 B I R R
Hi 2 B B K

46.Pledge of Assets 46. EEEA

R EEIR - AE B T 5 & E K
ERBRITREMBEEE ZER:

At the end of the reporting period, the following assets were
pledged by the Group to secure banking and other financing
facilities:

2013 2012

—E—=F —E-=F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHERT TR

Investments held for trading FIEEBERE 42,591 6,675

Properties held for sale FIEHEEWE 62,633 220,259
Land use right included in properties FAREERRYEL

under development for sale =+ 3 {5 FA 4 121,107 =

226,331 226,934
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47.Transactions and Balances with

Related Parties

At the date of the reporting period, the Company provided
financial guarantee contracts to a bank amounting to
HK$75,000,000 (2012: HK$75,000,000) to secure certain

banking facilities granted to an associate.

Included in trade and other receivables and prepayments in
note 28, HK$17,200,000 (2012: HK$nil) represents dividend
receivable from Fortune Well.

Details of balances with associates at the end of the reporting
period are set out in note 31.
Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of key

management during the year was as follows:

47. &

EHRRE A TETZR
Fﬁn‘-" =) ﬁ/%

7 KA

RERAM  ARARRRERT—ME
BENE scE TRITEERRTR
% %8/575,000,0008 C ( — T ——
% 175,000,000/ 7T ) Z IS ER A
4o

BiaE282 B 5 K E fib fE Wz 18 K Fa
KIEF 17,200,000 (ZE—=

& T L) 15 W Fortune Well Z %

B o
i

A BR 3 B R ER B
RBTFE3T ©

NA)VZ EERFIEH

TE2EEAS R

EERTEEEBEMKNERFEARAZ
oM

2013 2012

—E—=F —E——F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHT FAT

Short-term benefits 52 HAfE A 9,025 9,327

Retirement benefits scheme contributions &K@ 5 24 7 74 96

9,099 9,423

The remuneration of directors and key executives of the Group REBEERFETRAEHFMNES

is determined by the remuneration committee having regard to @H?E@E%%ﬁ—rzlf’ﬁﬁfﬁﬁm
the performance of individuals and market trends. LBBET -

Save as disclosed above, there were no other significant M EXCPTHt FE & N - E A 4 B B

transactions with related parties during the year or significant

balances with them at the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRE

For the year ended 31 March 2013 B Z=F—=F=HA=+—HIF&

48.Summary Financial Information of  48. AR R MBERBE

the Company

2013 2012
—=E-= —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH T T T
Total assets (note a) BERLE (Kita) 3,979,575 3,944,609
Total liabilities (note b) BERE (With) (1,191,934) (1,125,162)
2,787,641 2,819,447

Capital and Reserves BARR S
Share capital [N 11,213 11,213
Reserves (note c) B (K itc) 2,776,428 2,808,234
Total equity B 2,787,641 2,819,447

(@) The amount includes interests in subsidiaries and
amounts due from subsidiaries of approximately
HK$3,965,103,000 (2012: HK$3,930,767,000).

(b) The amount includes amounts due to subsidiaries
of approximately HK$1,117,904,000 (2012:
HK$1,014,100,000).

17) Hanny Holdings Limited * $2EEEH R A 7
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48.Summary Financial Information of  48. RO EMBEREIE (&)
the Company (Continued)

(© (©
Convertible Capital  Investment
Share  loan notes Contributed redemption  revaluation Accumulated Total
premium reserve surplus reserve reserve losses reserves
TRRER

ReEE RERfE RAER BARDRE REEMRE 2itEE AR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TATL TAL TAT TAT THTL TETL TATL

At 1 April 2011 RZE——FEA—H 1,304,930 28,151 1,578,913 592 (1,109) (581,875) 2,329,602
Profit for the year and EREFIRER

total comprehensive 2EBALE

income for the year - - - - - 246,339 246,339
Rights issue o33 289,048 - = = = = 289,048
Shares issue expenses RAEIRR (6,178) - - - - - (6,178)
Transfer upon maturity of ~ AJ AR Z F 5 4

convertible notes EE = (28,151) = = = = (28,151)
Dividend recognized BERARDIEL

as distribution BRE = = - - - (22,426) (22,426)
At 31 March 2012 WZE-—#=A=+t—-H 1,587,800 - 1,578,913 592 (1,109) (357,962) 2,808,234
Loss for the year and ENBERER

total comprehensive 2ERXESE

expense for the year - - - - - (9,380) (9,380)

Transfer of contributed ~ EEEHBHE
surplus to accumulated  Z3HEE

losses - - (500,000) - - 500,000 -
Dividend recognized BRRADIELRE

as distribution - - - - - (22,426) (22,426)
At 31 March 2013 RZF-=F=ZR=1+—-H 1,587,800 - 1,078,913 592 (1,109) 110,232 2,776,428

49 .Event After the Reporting Period 49. AR B

The Group entered into a conditional sale and purchase R-ZFE-——FRAZ-+HA XEEH
agreement with total consideration of HK$850,000,000 with BB E=7 ([BF])IE GEH
an independent third party (the “Vendor”) on 25 May 2012 B & W& L4 HK{E850,000,000/%
regarding the acquisition of certain subsidiaries (the “Target TWEAETERREEBEELEER
Group”) which are engaged in hotel operations in the PRC. A BRI (TEEEE]) A&HE
deposit of HK$250,000,000 was paid during the year ended EREE-TE——-F=A=+—H
31 March 2012. On 2 April 2013, as the Group was not 1EFE X~ 5T4250,000,000/ 7T ©
satisfied with the due diligent review of the Target Group, RZFE—=FNAZA BRAEE
being one of the precedent conditions to the agreement, the WA EHEERERETZ RBRASL
agreement had lapsed and deposit paid had been refunded by (BNE s o P — B RIEHE) -
the Vendor on 25 April 2013. HRZZE—=FMNA=Z+HHB ZiH
BEERM BEAFERECNE]
<i> °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2013 #Z - ZF—=F=HA=+—HI FZ

50.Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries 50. EZKE AR ZFH18

Details of the Company's principal subsidiaries at 31 March RZE—=F=A=+— -_=
2013 and 31 March 2012 are as follows: ——F=ZA=Z+—H8 &R XI%
HBA Rz HEmT
Issued and
Place of fully paid Proportion ownership
incorporation/ Class of share capital/ interest held
Name of subsidiary registration shares held registered capital by the Company Principal activities
#MAL/ BRARMRRE/ ADAFH2
WELAEE BRUY BERGEN  EREA RERRLH 347
2013 2012
—E-=F —E-—F
Island Town Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 100% 100%  Investment property holding
RBBRRE Bk EER 100/ 7T REREMER
Hanny Group Management ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,100,000,200 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited (formerly known ~ &7 ERK 1,100,000,200% 7t REER
as Hanny Magnetics
Limited) 5% non-voting HK$6,000,000
RREEERERA deferred shares 6,000,000 7
(FITBERRA A (note 3)
ARDAE) 5% ERZEREL
Rin (Hfita)
W R BB R B K PRC Ordinary RMB76,980,000 59.75% 59.75%  Water supply business
BB R (note b) i LRK AE#76,980,0007C K E75%
WERIESR T A BKT
BRAR (Hib)
Best Smooth BVI Ordinary US$100 100% 100%  Investment holding
E EBRAHS LRk 100% 7T REAER
Guangzhou Jixiang (note ) PRC Ordinary US$17,180,000 51% 59%  Development of properties
EMERE (Hiatb) HE LR 17,180,000% 1T (note ¢) (note ¢) for sale
(Histc) (Hidc) REMFALHEE

Hanny Holdings Limited « $3 B &@EHR A 7



50.Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries
(Continued)

Notes:

a. The holders of the 5% non-voting deferred shares are not
entitled to receive notice of or to attend or vote at any general
meetings of the company. The non-voting deferred shares
practically carry no rights to dividends or to participate in any
distribution on winding up.

b. These companies are registered in the form of foreign

investment enterprises.

C. Guangzhou Jixiang is a wholly owned subsidiary of China Good.
Upon the transfer of 41% and 8% interest of China Good to
Prosperous Global during the year ended 31 March 2012 and
2013 respectively as stated in note 27, the effective interest of
the Group in Guangzhou Jixiang reduced from 100% to 59% as
at 31 March 2012 and further reduced to 51% as at 31 March
2013.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the result of
the Group for the year or formed a substantial portion of the
net assets of the Group at the end of the year. To give details
of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,

result in particular of excessive length.
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Financial Summary

MBRE

A summary of the consolidated results and of the assets and

liabilities of the Group for each of the five years ended 31 March

2013 is set out below:

(a) Results

AEEREBE_ZT—=F=A=+—H1Lt
TEAFESEFREXENEERAG M
ZHNTX:

(a) ¥4&

Year ended 31 March
BE=A=+—-HLEE

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
—TTNE —T-TF T _—T-_F —B-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET FTER
(restated)
(F575)
Revenue KA 49,309 74,530 23,222 78,129 180,620
(Loss) profit for the year from REFEEEXEBZFN
continuing operations (E8) & F (1,139,640) 200,243 96,881 (218,287)  (132,240)
(Loss) profit for the year from REERIEEXEBZFR
discontinued operation (B8) & - - (4,029) 30,142 -
(Loss) profit for the year FN(EE) & (1,139,640) 200,243 92,852 (188,145)  (132,240)
Attributable to: AR AR
Owners of the Company KRARHEA A (1,145,222) 188,731 81,865 (189,994)  (126,720)
Non-controlling interests IR R 5,582 11,512 10,987 1,849 (5,520)
(1,139,640) 200,243 92,852 (188,145) (132,240)
. ey . .
(b) Assets and Liabilities (b) EERERE
At 31 March
R=B=+-—H
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
—ZTHNE —T-TF —T——F —T-_F ZB-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT FHET FHET FEx
Total assets BELE 3,618,938 4,290,979 4,223,012 4,098,602 4,747,554
Total liabilities BELE (1,176,440) (1,660,667) (1,468,589) (691,787) (1,352,299)
2,442,498 2,630,312 2,754,423 3,406,815 3,395,255
Equity attributable to RARHEBA
Owners of the Company FE {1 25 2,004,535 2,475,361 2,634,154 2,709,242 2,526,787
Non-controlling interests PR A 437,963 154,951 120,269 697,573 868,468
2,442,498 2,630,312 2,754,423 3,406,815 3,395,255

Hanny Holdings Limited * $8 # £ EHRA 7



REGISTERED OFFICE sMi=E
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda

PRINCIPAL OFFICE ¥EHRER
25th Floor, Paul Y. Centre,

51 Hung To Road, Kwun Tong,
Kowloon, Hong Kong

BENEEIEBEBES1FRREREF L2512

HANNY



	Cover
	Corporate Information
	Table of Contents
	Chairman’s Statement
	Management Discussion and Analysis
	Directors Profile
	Corporate Governance Report
	Report of the Directors
	Independent Auditor’s Report
	Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
	Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
	Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
	Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
	Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
	Financial Summary
	Back Cover

